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Going forward, economic forecast data for the State of California and Orange County predicts that the economy will 
continue on its current path of a very long and slow recovery, with job growth and consumer confidence being the 
biggest keys to sustained improvement.  The State Legislative Analyst (LAO) currently predicts growth in personal 
income statewide of 4.5% to 5.5% annually over the next three years and annual retail sales growth of 5.5%.  
However, the LAO lowered their most current forecast for job growth to 1.0% per year for the next two years and 
foresees that the statewide unemployment rate will persist in the 10.3% to 11.2% range through 2014.  California State 
University, Fullerton, in their most current forecast for Orange County, predicts the economy accelerating from an 
estimated 1.9% annual job-growth rate this year to 3.0% percent by 2014, resulting in the creation of 26,500 new jobs 
countywide this year and ultimately jumping to 42,400 in 2014.  This expected job growth will drop Orange County’s 
current average unemployment rate from 7.9% to 6.7% in 2014.  The University further forecasts the County’s median 
home price to increase by 5.0% to 7.0% next year. 
 
Locally, the City’s unemployment rate will likely continue to hover around the 6.7% - 7.0% range, and the City’s growth 
in property tax revenue is expected to be flat in FY 2012-2013 compared to the previous year.  Sales tax revenue is 
expected to increase in FY 2012-2013 due to the City realizing a full year’s worth of new sales tax revenues generated 
by new retailers like Whole Foods and Hobby Lobby coming online.  Retail sales for the period January 2012 through 
June 2012 are up 4.0% over the same time period in 2011.  The City was able to adopt a budget for 2012-13 that 
maintains all existing service levels and programs and provides $7.1 million for capital improvements, including $3.2 
million to maintain the quality of the streets enhanced by the City’s original $30 million, five-year Street Resurfacing 
Program. 
 
State Budget.   On June 27, 2012, the Governor signed the 2012-2013 Budget Act.  The budget closes a $15.7 billion 
gap and forecasts a reserve of nearly $1 billion, relying primarily on temporary taxes passed by the voters during the 
November 2012 election.  The budget bill provides $48.8 million in state-mandated local programs; however, it 
suspended 56 non-education mandates that impact local governments, including mandates related to absentee 
ballots, open meeting procedures, and animal shelters.  When the Legislature suspends a mandate or the Governor 
vetoes its appropriation, (1) local governments are not required to implement its requirements and (2) the state may 
postpone paying its accumulated bills.  Budget trailer legislation specifies that for all mandates suspended in the 2012-
2013 Budget Act, the period of suspension will continue through 2014-15. 
 
Major Initiatives.  Several significant projects are being planned, designed, or constructed over the next few years.  
These include: 
 
Library Expansion 
 
The County of Orange and the City jointly funded the renovation and expansion of the County-owned Laguna Niguel 
Branch Library.  The County was responsible for the first $1.5 million of project design and construction costs and the 
City was responsible for the balance of project costs.  The City Council had appropriated a total of $3.5 million for this 
project.   Construction of this project began in November 2010 and reopened on August 19, 2012. 
 
Annual Street Resurfacing Program 
 
The City embarked on a five-year $30 million street improvement program during FY 2007-2008.  This program will 
upgrade or provide necessary maintenance to substantially every residential City street over a five year period.  For 
FY 2011-2012, the City appropriated $6 million as the fifth and final installment in the five-year program.  The FY 2012-
2013 Adopted Budget includes an appropriation of $3.2 to maintain the City’s streets in the enhanced condition 
resulting from the five-year street improvement program. 
   
Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I 
 
In March of 2011, the construction contract was awarded for the Crown Valley Parkway/I-5 Widening Project.  This 
project will widen eastbound Crown Valley from Cabot Road to the I-5 northbound ramps to improve traffic flow and 
expand roadway capacity to accommodate the expected growth in the City’s Gateway area.  The project will add a 
dedicated right turn lane (beginning at Forbes Road) for the southbound I-5 ramp, a dedicated right turn lane for the 
northbound ramp and four continuous eastbound through lanes to match the current four through lanes that begin in 
Mission Viejo at the northbound ramp.  The total cost estimate for the project is $11.3 million.  The City has been 
awarded $5 million in Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) funding for the project and will share the 
balance of the costs equally with the City of Mission Viejo since the overpass is situated in Mission Viejo.  The project 
is expected to be completed in January 2013.   
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Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase II 
 
A companion project to Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I, this project will widen eastbound Crown 
Valley Parkway from Cabot Road to Forbes Road.  This project will provide a continuous fourth eastbound through 
lane and will allow the City to install dual left turn lanes from eastbound Crown Valley to northbound Forbes to 
accommodate future development.  The total cost estimate for the project is $3.0 million.  The City has been awarded 
$1.5 million in Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) funding for the project and will coordinate the work on 
this project with the Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I to complete these projects simultaneously.  
The project is expected to be completed in January 2013. 
 
Paseo de Colinas Seismic Retrofit  
 
The Paseo de Colinas Overpass Bridge is located west of Interstate 5 and north of Avery Parkway.  The project will 
provide for the seismic retrofit of the existing left and right bridges to prevent collapse of the structure under a 
Maximum Credible Earthquake (MCE).  The total cost estimate for the project is $3.6 million.  The City is expected to 
receive $3.2 million in Federal Highway Bridge Program grant revenue funding for this project through FY 2013-2014.  
This project is expected to be completed in FY 2013-2014. 
 
Reserve Policy.  The City’s Financial Reserves Policy is reviewed on an annual basis for the purpose of providing 
fiscal stability and to ensure the long-term financial health of the City.  It is the goal of management to maintain 
adequate reserve funds for known and unknown contingencies.  As in prior years, this year’s policy calls for 
maintaining a reserve for financial and economic uncertainty in an amount equal to no less than 50% of annual 
General Fund operating expenditures and operating transfers and a reserve for compensable accrued unused 
vacation and sick leave.  The City Council may designate portions of the fund balance of the General Fund for future 
capital projects, continuing or carry-over appropriations, or any other municipal purpose that the City Council deems 
prudent or necessary.  A reserve for capital assets and infrastructure replacement is to be maintained in an amount 
equal to the remaining General Fund balance after the economic uncertainty, compensable leaves and all other City 
Council allocations have been made.   All fund balance classifications comply with the requirements of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54 and are identified in Note 8 of the Notes to Financial 
Statements. 

 
 

SUMMARY OF CURRENT YEAR ACCOMPLISHMENTS 
 
Administration 
 
During FY 2011-2012, the City Council and City Management: 
 

 Completed construction of the new City Hall. 
 Received the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in 

Financial Reporting for the City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for fiscal year ended June 30, 
2011. 

 
Public Safety 
 
Once again, as outlined in the May 2012 Safe City Annual Report, Laguna Niguel continues to experience lower and, 
in some instances, dropping, crime rates as compared with most every City in Orange County.  Laguna Niguel is 
ranked the 4th safest municipality in the County according to the Federal Bureau of Investigation.  Some reasons for 
this multi-year trend are the progressive posture of Police Services in areas of crime prevention, traffic collision 
prevention, and community outreach/education in a variety of public safety areas.  Some examples of the 
effectiveness of these programs are visible in the steady decline in juvenile service cases since 2007 and a 15.5% 
drop in traffic collisions in 2011.  The community and law enforcement relationship is further strengthened with the 
delivery of the following programs in FY 2011-2012: 
 

 16th Annual Citizen’s Academy 
 Second Annual National Night Out 
 Revitalized Neighborhood Watch Program 
 Multi-Agency Point of Dispensing Exercise  
 Senior Safety and Crime Prevention Programs  
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Community and Economic Development 
 
During FY 2011-2012, the City continued to work with local businesses and property owners to maintain a healthy 
economic climate, and protect and increase local tax revenues.  Significant events and activities included: 
 

 Adoption of the comprehensive update to the Gateway Specific Plan and Program Environmental Impact 
Report to transform the 315-acre area between the I-5 Freeway and the 73 Toll Road into a vibrant 
pedestrian and transit-oriented pedestrian village. 

 Completion of entitlements for: 
 Career Lofts Project, the first high-density residential project in the Gateway with 142 units (67 du/ac), 

including a 5% very-low affordable housing component. 
 Life Time Fitness, a new 128,000 square foot health club to replace the vacant Home Expo Design 

Center. 
 Aliso Creek Village Center Remodel, an extensive exterior remodel of the in-line tenants to compliment 

the new design of the Whole Foods Market.  
 Several new restaurants throughout the City: Pei Wei (Plaza De La Paz), Tastes of Greece Expansion 

(Crown Valley Center), L.J. Bistro (Laguna Niguel Plaza). 
 Completion of construction and opening of several new major retail businesses, including Whole Foods 

Market, Hobby Lobby, Fresh & Easy Market and Cinepolis Luxury Theaters. 
 Completion of construction and opening of a New Model Complex including four (4) homes, and an additional 

eight (8) production homes in the San Joaquin Hills neighborhood. 
 Commencement of one (1) new lease and completion of five (5) separate wireless telecommunication sites 

within the public right-of-way through the City’s streamlined administrative review process. 
 Adoption of the Housing Element Update and certification from the State Department of Housing and 

Community Development. 
 
Public Works and Infrastructure 
 
The City completed over $15 million of public works and infrastructure investment during FY 2011-2012, including: 
 

 City Hall Construction Project 
 Camino Capistrano Street and Landscape Improvement Project – Phase II 
 Crown Valley Community Park Synthetic Grass Replacement Project 
 Niguel Woods Overlay and Subdrain Improvements 
 Citywide Street Resurfacing Program. 

 
In addition, as discussed above, the City is continuing its work on Phases I and II of the Crown Valley Parkway 
Widening Project, and expects both phases to be completed by January 2013. 

 
Parks and Recreation 
 
During FY 2011-2012 the City: 
 

 Coordinated the Grand Opening Celebration for the new City Hall 
 Coordinated the 11th Annual 9/11 Remembrance Event 
 Coordinated the Annual Holiday Parade, with approximately 10,000 people in attendance 
 Implemented a new senior citizen transportation program 
 Began the planning process for the Crown Valley Park Master Plan and Community Recreation Needs 

Assessment. 
 
 
FUTURE WORK PROGRAM INITIATIVES 
 
Many of the City’s priorities, projects, and programs will be continued throughout FY 2012-2013.  Work Program 
highlights include: 
 

 Appointing a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem for 2013. 
 Completing recruitment and selection of new City Manager. 
 Conducting November 2012 Municipal Election. 
 Providing quarterly “Laguna Niguel Disaster Ready” programs for Laguna Niguel residents. 
 Presenting Safe City Plan Annual Report. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council  
City of Laguna Niguel, California 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Laguna Niguel, California, as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in 
the table of contents.  These financial statements are the responsibility of City of Laguna Niguel, 
California management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on 
our audit.  The prior year summarized comparative information has been derived from the City’s  
June 30, 2011 financial statements and, in our report dated October 13, 2012, we expressed unqualified 
on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Laguna Niguel, California, as of June 30, 2012, and the respective changes 
in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated  
November 29, 2012, on our consideration of the City of Laguna Niguel, California’s internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be 
considered in assessing the results of our audit. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information as listed in the table of contents be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP   203 North Brea Boulevard  •  Suite 203  •  Brea, CA 92821  •  TEL: 714.672.0022  •  Fax: 714.672.0331       www.lslcpas.com
Orange County      Temecula Valley      Silicon Valley

Brandon W. Burrows, CPA
David E. Hale, CPA, CFP
    A Professional Corporation
Donald G. Slater, CPA
Richard K. Kikuchi, CPA
Susan F. Matz, CPA
Shelly K. Jackley, CPA
Bryan S. Gruber, CPA
Deborah A. Harper, CPA
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CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
As management of the City of Laguna Niguel (“City”), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  Our 
intent is to assist the reader of these financial statements in better understanding the impact of financial decisions 
made by the City.  This analysis will focus on the significant changes in an effort to explain the City’s overall 
financial condition.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the 
additional information furnished in our letter of transmittal. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The City’s basic financial statements consist of three components:  1) government-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to basic financial statements.  This report also consists of supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements. 
 
Government-wide financial statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s 
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business.  They are comprised of the following: 
 
 Statement of Net Assets 

 
The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities on a full accrual 
basis of accounting similar to that used by private-sector companies.  The difference between assets and 
liabilities is reported as net assets.  Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

 
 Statement of Activities 

 
The Statement of Activities presents information about the City’s revenues and expenses on a full accrual 
basis, with an emphasis on measuring net revenues or expenses for each of the City’s programs.  This 
statement also reflects the change in net assets for the year.   

 
Government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental 
activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works, community development, and parks 
and recreation.  The City has no business-type activities. 
 
The Government-wide financial statements can be found behind the tab section titled Government-Wide Financial 
Statements on pages 13-14 of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated 
for specific activities or objectives.  The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to 
ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City are 
divided into two categories:  governmental funds and one proprietary fund. 
 
The fund financial statements provide detail information about each of the City’s most significant funds, called 
Major Funds. The concept of Major Funds, and the determination of which are major funds, was established by 
GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and 
Local Governments (GASB 34) and replaces the concept of combining like funds and presenting them in total.  
Instead, each Major Fund is presented individually, while all Non-Major Funds are summarized and presented in a 
single column. 
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 Governmental Funds 
 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, 
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as 
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be 
useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financial requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it 
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  A reconciliation of both 
the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balance with the governmental-wide financial statements can be found on pages behind the 
tab section titled Government-Wide Financial Statements. 

 
The City has 9 governmental funds for financial reporting purposes, of which three are considered major funds 
for presentation purposes.  Each major fund is presented separately in the governmental funds balance sheet 
and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.  The 
City’s three major funds are: General Fund, Special Revenue – Miscellaneous Grants Fund, and Capital 
Projects – City Capital Projects Fund.  Data from the non-major governmental funds (e.g., Gas Tax Fund, 
Measure M Fund, Air Quality Improvement Fund, Law Enforcement Fund, and Community Development Block 
Grant Fund) are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  The governmental funds financial 
statements can be found on pages behind the tab section titled Fund Financial Statements.  Individual fund 
data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements on 
pages behind the tab section titled Supplementary Schedules. 

 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for all governmental funds.  A budgetary comparison schedule 
has been provided for each of the funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

 
 Proprietary Funds 

 
The proprietary fund used by the City is an internal service fund.  Internal service funds are an accounting 
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions.  The City uses an 
internal service fund to account for its fleet of vehicles. 
 
Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail.  Like the government-wide financial statements, proprietary fund financial 
statements use the accrual basis of accounting.  A separate financial statement is provided for the Vehicle 
Replacement Internal Service Fund. 
 
The fund financial statements can be found behind the tab section titled Fund Financial Statements on pages 
15-23 of this report. 

 
Notes to Financial Statements 
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to obtain a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to financial statements can be found behind the tab 
section titled Notes to Financial Statements on pages 25-47 of this report. 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Required supplementary information includes budgetary information on the General Fund and Miscellaneous 
Grants Fund, as well as the budget process.  Required supplementary information can be found behind the tab 
section titled Required Supplementary Information on pages 49-52 of this report. 
 
Supplementary Schedules 
 
Supplementary schedules provide budgetary information on the City Capital Projects Fund, as well as detail about 
the non-major governmental funds, which are added together and presented in single columns in the fund financial 
statements.  Supplementary schedules can be found behind the tab section titled Supplementary Schedules on 
pages 53-63 of this report. 
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The following table summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the portion of the 
City government they cover and the types of information they contain. 
 
 

Major Features of the City’s Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 

  Fund Statements 
 Government-Wide 

 Statements 
 

Governmental Funds 
 

Proprietary Funds 
Scope Entire City government The activities of the City 

that are not proprietary 
Activities the City operates 
similar to private businesses 

    
Required 
financial 
statements 

 Statement of Net 
Assets 

 Statement of 
Activities 

 Balance Sheet 
 Statement of 

Revenues, 
Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund 
Balances 

 Statement of Net Assets 
 Statement of Revenues, 

Expenses and Changes 
in Net Assets 

 Statement of Cash 
Flows 

    
Accounting basis 
and 
measurement 
focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Modified accrual 
accounting and current 
financial resources 
focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

    
Type of asset/ 
liability 
information 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long-
term debt 

Only assets expected to 
be used up and 
liabilities that come due 
during the year or soon 
thereafter; no capital 
assets or long-term debt 
included 

All assets and liabilities, both 
financial and capital, and 
short-term and long-term 
debt 

    
Type of inflow/ 
outflow 
information 

All revenues and 
expenses during year, 
regardless of when cash 
is received or paid 

Revenues for which 
cash is received during 
or soon after the end of 
the year; expenditures 
when goods or services 
have been received and 
payment is due during 
the year or soon 
thereafter 

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received or 
paid 

 
 
 

 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2012 by $620.0 million.  The amount is referred to as 

the net assets of the City.  Of this amount, $68.3 is unrestricted net assets and may be used to meet the City’s 
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 
 The City’s net assets, before consideration of a ($773,793) prior period adjustment, increased by $5.5 million 

during the past year; that is, total revenues exceeded total expenses by $5.5 million.  After consideration of the 
prior period adjustment, the City’s net assets increased by $4.7 million.  This compares to the prior year 
increase of $306,900.  FY 2011-2012 revenue increased by $3.7 million and expenses (primarily public works) 
decreased by $4.4 million compared to FY 2010-2011 levels. 

 
 At the close of FY 2011-2012, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 

$69.1 million, an increase of $300,000 compared to the prior year.  Of the total $69.1 million fund balances at 
year-end, $67.3 million is available for spending at the government’s discretion (the sum of the committed, 
assigned and unassigned fund balance categories reported on the accompanying financial statements). 
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 As of June 30, 2012, the committed, assigned, and unassigned portions of fund balance of the General Fund, 
the City’s chief operating fund, totaled $67.9 million. 

 
 Of the total fund balance of the General Fund at June 30, 2012, the City Council has committed $26.8 million 

for capital asset replacement, and has assigned $22.9 million for continuing appropriations and $4.0 million for 
streets and roads.  In addition, the Council has set aside $13.4 million for economic uncertainty, which is 
reported in these financial statements as unassigned fund balance. 

 
 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
The following analysis focuses on the net assets and changes in net assets of the City’s governmental activities 
presented in the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities.  As noted earlier, net 
assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.  In the case of the City, 
assets exceed liabilities by $620.0 million at June 30, 2012. 
 
The following is a summary of the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets: 

           

 
Governmental Activities

Net Assets at June 30 
(in millions) 

  

2012  2011  

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 
from 2011 

       
Cash and investments  $        72.4  $        74.4  $        (2.0) 
Other assets  3.8  4.5  (0.7) 
Capital assets  550.2  545.9  4.3. 
 
        Total assets 

  
626.4 

  
624.8 

  
1.6. 

       
Long-term debt outstanding  0.9  0.7  0.2. 
Other liabilities  5.5  8.8  (3.3) 
 
        Total liabilities 

  
6.4 

  
9.5 

  
(3.1) 

       
Net assets:       
    Invested in capital assets  550.2  545.9  4.3. 
    Restricted  1.5  0.6  0.9. 
    Unrestricted  68.3  68.8  (0.5) 
 
        Total net assets, as restated 

  
$      620.0 

  
$      615.3 

  
$         4.7. 

         

 
Before consideration of a ($773,793) prior period adjustment, the City’s net assets increased by $5.5 million; 
however, after consideration of the prior period adjustment, the City’s net assets increased by $4.7 million, or 0.8%, 
during FY 2011-2012.  Assets increased $1.6 million and liabilities decreased $3.1 million compared to June 30, 
2011.  The increase in net assets is due primarily to the increase in capital assets.  The most significant addition to 
capital assets in FY 2011-2012 was construction in progress for the Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – 
Phase I.  See the Capital Assets section of Management’s Discussion & Analysis for additional information on 
capital project asset additions. 
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The following is a summary of the Government-Wide Statement of Activities: 
             

 
Governmental Activities

Changes in Net Assets for the Year Ended June 30 
(in millions) 

  

2012  2011  

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 
from 2011 

       
Revenues:       
    Program revenues:       
        Charges for services  $         2.9.  $          2.5  $         0.4. 
        Operating contributions and grants  3.4.  3.3  0.1. 
        Capital contributions and grants  3.9.  1.3  2.6. 
 
            Total program revenues 

  
10.2. 

  
7.1 

  
3.1. 

       
    General revenues:       
        Property taxes  16.8.  16.8  - 
        Sales taxes  11.0.  9.7  1.3. 
        Other taxes  2.7.  2.6  0.1. 
        Investment earnings  1.0.  1.2  (0.2) 
        Other revenues  0.1.  0.7  (0.6) 
 
            Total general revenues 

  
31.6. 

  
31.0 

  
0.6. 

 
            Total revenues 

  
41.8. 

  
38.1 

  
3.7. 

       
Program expenses:       
    General government  4.9.  4.0  0.9. 
    Public safety  9.9.  10.0  (0.1) 
    Community development  4.0.  2.8  1.2. 
    Public works  13.4.  17.1  (3.7) 
    Parks and recreation  4.1.  3.9  0.2. 
 
            Total expenses 

  
36.3. 

  
37.8 

  
(1.5) 

 
            Increase in net assets 

  
5.5. 

  
0.3 

  
5.2. 

 
Beginning net assets 

  
615.3. 

  
615.0 

  
0.3. 

 
Restatement of net assets 

  
(0.8) 

  
- 

  
(0.8) 

 
Ending net assets 

  
$     620.0. 

  
$      615.3 

  
$         4.7. 

            

 
The City’s total revenues were $41.8 million in FY 2011-2012, while the total cost of all programs was $36.3 million.  
Total revenues increased by $3.7 million, or 9.7%, from prior year levels and total expenses decreased by $1.5 
million.  FY 2011-2012 program revenue increased $3.1 million from the prior year, primarily a result of greater 
capital grants for street-related projects.  FY 2011-2012 general revenue also increased from the prior year.  The 
$0.6 million increase is mostly attributable to a substantial increase in sales tax revenue resulting from escalations 
in same store sales, a rise in “triple flip” backfill funds, and new retailers coming on line during the fiscal year.  The 
increase in sales tax revenue was partially offset by (1) the State’s reallocation of motor vehicle license fee 
revenue from cities to State law enforcement grants and (2) a decline in investment earnings resulting from the 
continuing decline in longer-term interest rates. 
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to expenditures and transfers out of $3.3 million.  As a result, the deficit fund balance increased by $196,008, 
from $428,679 to $624,687.  The key factors for this increase were project costs, recorded in this fund as 
transfers out to the City Capital Projects Fund, pertaining to phases I and II of the Crown Valley Parkway 
Widening Project, the Paseo de Colinas Bridge Seismic Retrofit Project, and the Camino Capistrano Street 
and Landscape Improvement Project. These project costs were moderately offset by partial grant 
reimbursements related to the Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I and the Paseo de Colinas 
Bridge Seismic Retrofit Project. 

 
 City Capital Projects Fund – This fund accounts for all expenditures relating to City capital projects.  Revenues 

and transfers into the fund generally equal actual expenditures on capital projects; therefore, this fund usually 
reflects no fund balance at the end of the year.  Total expenditures and transfers into the fund were $12.7 
million for the current fiscal year, a decrease of $13.5 million from the previous fiscal year.  This decrease is 
primarily due to the completion of the permanent City Hall project in which total City Hall expenditures were 
$3.8 million for the current year compared to $16.8 million last year. 

 
A number of capital projects budgeted in FY 2011-2012 and previous fiscal years were not yet finished at June 
30, 2012, the largest being annual street resurfacing, the Paseo de Colinas bridge seismic retrofit, and Crown 
Valley Parkway widening projects.  The unexpended appropriations for these unfinished projects totaled $20.7 
million at year-end and were re-appropriated by the City Council on June 19, 2012.    

 
 General Fund – This fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 

unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $13.4 million, while total fund balance was $68.3 million.  
General Fund revenues exceeded expenditures this year by $8.5 million; however, the fund balance of the 
City’s General Fund decreased by $377,081, or 0.5%, during the current fiscal year.  The reason for the 
decline was due to transfers to the City Capital Projects Fund, which totaled $8.9 million this year.  These 
transfers primarily funded the Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I, the completion costs for the 
permanent City Hall, and various projects related to Crown Valley Community Park and several of the City’s 
neighborhood parks.  

 
 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The original adopted General Fund revenue budget for FY 2011-2012 was $34.0 million.  During the course of the 
year, estimated revenues were increased by a net amount of $3.1 million, resulting in a final revenue budget of 
$37.1 million.  The most significant increases are attributable to: 
 

 $1.1 million of estimated cost sharing reimbursements from the City of Mission Viejo for their portion of the 
Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I; 
 

 $1.4 million of budgetary “transfers in” due to the permanent City Hall being completed under budget; 
 

 $300,000 of additional sales tax and “triple flip” backfill funds; 
 

 $150,000 of additional building and safety fee revenue; and 
 

 $90,000 of additional planning fee revenue. 
   
The original adopted General Fund operating budget for FY 2011-12 was $27.6 million.  The original budget was 
then modified by $2.4 million to include carry-over encumbrances and the re-appropriation of previous year 
appropriations, for a total beginning operating budget of $30.0 million.   During the course of the fiscal year, total 
General Fund appropriations were increased by $134,756, for a final amended budget of $30.1 million.  The most 
significant increases are attributable to additional building and safety services expenditures and professional 
services related to the Laguna Niguel Gateway Specific Plan. 
 
The original adopted General Fund capital budget was $7.0 million.  The original budget was then modified by 
$17.3 million to include carry-over encumbrances and the re-appropriation of previous year appropriations for a 
total beginning, capital budget of $24.3 million.  The final amended budget totaled $25.4 million, a net increase of 
$1.1 million in mid-year budget adjustments.  The amendment was due to the appropriation of $1.1 million of 
additional cost sharing reimbursements expected to be received by the City of Mission Viejo for the joint Crown 
Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I. 
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Actual operating expenditures for the year were $3.3 million less than the final operating budget.  While some of 
this variance is due to conservative spending practices during the course of the fiscal year, the City has 
accumulated appropriations for certain operating programs or projects that were not completed by June 30, 2012.  
Appropriations for these uncompleted programs and projects were re-appropriated by the City Council on June 19, 
2012 in the amount of $2.4 million.  Some of the more significant projects include the implementation of a citywide 
document imaging system (accumulated appropriation of $116,861), public safety programs and initiatives 
($387,521), playgrounds/parkland inspections (accumulated appropriation of $96,709), storm drain/water quality 
programs and initiatives (accumulated appropriation of $651,803), and the purchase of furniture, equipment, and 
other capital assets for the furnishing of the expanded Senior and Community Center (accumulated appropriation 
of $277,388). 
 
Actual transfers out to the City Capital Projects Fund to fund capital project expenditures for the year were $18.3 
million less than the final budget.  The entire balance of this amount was re-appropriated by the City Council on 
June 19, 2012.  Of this amount, $12.7 million is for the Annual Street Resurfacing project and $1.5 million is for the 
Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase II. 
 
 
CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The table below presents all City capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, including infrastructure.  
Infrastructure includes roads, sidewalks, traffic signals, bridges, storm drains, and similar assets used by the entire 
population. 

  

 
Capital Assets at June 30

(net of depreciation) 
(in millions) 

  2012  2011  

Increase/ 
(Decrease) 
from 2011 

       

Land  $             271.1  $           271.1  $         -. 

Construction in progress  7.0  25.9  (18.9) 

Buildings and improvements  43.3  18.9  24.4. 

Park improvements  8.5  10.0  (1.5) 

Swimming pool  0.8  0.6  0.2. 

Furniture and equipment  0.6  0.4  0.2. 

Vehicles  0.2  0.3  (0.1) 

Infrastructure  218.7  218.7  -. 

       Total  $             550.2  $           545.9  $                4.3. 
         

 
The City’s investment in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased $4.3 million, or 0.7%, during FY 
2011-2012.  Significant capital asset events during the fiscal year included: 

 
 completion of the permanent City Hall building at a total capitalized cost of $24.9 million; and 

 
 infrastructure additions of $1.9 million for the Avery Parkway Improvement Project and $1.6 million for the 

Camino Capistrano Street and Landscape Improvement Project; and 
 

The capital projects above were included in the construction in progress balance in the prior year; however, upon 
completion of these projects in FY 2011-2012, they were reclassified by their physical asset type.  The City 
depreciates all its capital assets over their estimated useful lives.  The addition of capital assets was partially offset 
by total annual depreciation for the current fiscal year in the amount of $6.2 million.  For more information on the 
City’s capital assets, refer to Note 4 of the Notes to Financial Statements. 
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
As of June 30, 2012, the City had no outstanding debt. 
 
 
NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 
 
The FY 2012-2013 General Fund budget is $34.0 million, which is a 1.4% decrease from the FY 2011-2012 
adopted budget.  General Fund estimated revenues exceed operating budget appropriations by $5.3 million.  The 
budget provides for a total transfer of $5.3 million to the City Capital Projects Fund to meet capital needs. 
 
 
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those interested in the 
government’s finances.  If you have questions about this report, or need additional financial information, please 
contact the Director of Finance, City of Laguna Niguel, 30111 Crown Valley Parkway, Laguna Niguel, California 
92677. 
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2012 2011

Assets:

Cash and investments 72,352,896$      74,359,186$      

Receivables

Accounts 530,216             490,234             

Taxes 1,816,148          1,463,097          

Interest 297,216             437,004             

Permits 36,075               12,075               

Prepaid costs 367,671             361,223             

Deposits 1,960                 15,677               

Due from other governments 792,765             1,745,336          

Capital assets not being depreciated 278,111,849      296,959,969      

Capital assets, net of depreciation 272,086,987      248,972,701      

Total Assets 626,393,783      624,816,502      

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 3,832,152          6,079,651          

Accrued salaries 273,661             232,072             

Unearned revenues 177,418             177,418             

Deposits payable 981,741             946,797             

Retentions Payable 297,611             1,340,857          

Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 182,391             21,777               

Due in more than one year 671,571             718,960             

Total Liabilities 6,416,545          9,517,532          

Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets 550,198,836      545,932,670      

Restricted for:

Public safety 279,242             265,628             

Community development 15                      -                         

Streets 856,606             1,753                 

Air quality improvement 295,413             296,113             

Unrestricted 68,347,126        68,802,806        

Total Net Assets 619,977,238$    615,298,970$    

See Notes to Financial Statements

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

Total Governmental Activities
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Operating Capital

Charges for Contributions Contributions

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants 2012 2011

Functions/Programs

Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:

General government 4,955,909$     3,686$            4,029$            -$                   (4,948,194)$    (4,023,986)$    

Public safety 9,867,718       404,197          136,549          -                     (9,326,972)      (9,492,997)      

Community development 3,970,610       1,143,063       254,934          -                     (2,572,613)      (936,712)         

Public works 13,434,792     218,091          2,972,842       3,848,007       (6,395,852)      (13,393,861)    

Parks and recreation 4,088,348       1,107,502       8,155              -                     (2,972,691)      (2,808,388)      

Total Governmental Activities 36,317,377     2,876,539       3,376,509       3,848,007       (26,216,322)    (30,655,944)    

16,820,273     16,812,673     

11,044,440     9,673,445       

2,320,351       2,277,125       

404,659          387,800          

33,476            308,560          

953,081          1,181,878       

92,106            319,363          

-                     2,000              

31,668,386     30,962,844     

5,452,064       306,900          

615,298,970   614,992,070   

(773,796)         -                     

619,977,238$ 615,298,970$ 

See Notes to Financial Statements

Motor vehicle in lieu - unrestricted

Use of money and property

Other

Governmental Activities

and Changes in Net Assets

Net (Expenses) Revenues

General Revenues:

Program Revenues

Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purpose

Sales taxes

Franchise taxes

Other taxes

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Gain on sale of capital asset

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets at Beginning of Year

Net Assets at End of Year

Restatement of Net Assets
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Special Capital

Revenue Fund Projects Fund

Other

Miscellaneous City Capital Governmental

General Grants Projects Funds

Assets:

Cash and investments 68,164,213$     -$                     1,985,168$       1,330,214$       

Receivables

Accounts 530,216            -                       -                       -                       

Taxes 1,816,148         -                       -                       -                       

Interest 297,216            -                       -                       -                       

Permits 36,075              -                       -                       -                       

Prepaid costs 367,671            -                       -                       -                       

Deposits 1,960                -                       -                       -                       

Due from other governments 221,741            188,937            -                       382,087            

Due from other funds 630,912            -                       -                       -                       

Total Assets 72,066,152$     188,937$          1,985,168$       1,712,301$       

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,036,801$       6,837$              1,510,139$       278,375$          

Accrued salaries 273,661            -                       -                       -                       

Deferred revenues 505,917            178,525            -                       -                       

Unearned revenues -                       -                       177,418            -                       

Deposits payable 981,741            -                       -                       -                       

Due to other funds -                       628,262            -                       2,650                

Retentions Payable -                       -                       297,611            -                       

Total Liabilities 3,798,120         813,624            1,985,168         281,025            

Fund Balances:

Nonspendable 369,631            -                       -                       -                       

Restricted -                       -                       -                       1,431,276         

Committed 27,616,266       -                       -                       -                       

Assigned 26,900,314       -                       -                       -                       

Unassigned 13,381,821       (624,687)           -                       -                       

Total Fund Balances 68,268,032       (624,687)           -                       1,431,276         

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 72,066,152$     188,937$          1,985,168$       1,712,301$       

See Notes to Financial Statements

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012
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2012 2011

Assets:

Cash and investments 71,479,595$     73,612,823$     

Receivables

Accounts 530,216            490,234            

Taxes 1,816,148         1,463,097         

Interest 297,216            437,004            

Permits 36,075              12,075              

Prepaid costs 367,671            361,223            

Deposits 1,960                15,677              

Due from other governments 792,765            1,745,336         

Due from other funds 630,912            1,153,860         

Total Assets 75,952,558$     79,291,329$     

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 3,832,152$       6,079,651$       

Accrued salaries 273,661            232,072            

Deferred revenues 684,442            581,427            

Unearned revenues 177,418            177,418            

Deposits payable 981,741            946,797            

Due to other funds 630,912            1,153,860         

Retentions Payable 297,611            1,340,857         

Total Liabilities 6,877,937         10,512,082       

Fund Balances:

Nonspendable 369,631            376,900            

Restricted 1,431,276         563,494            

Committed 27,616,266       28,003,766       

Assigned 26,900,314       26,880,508       

Unassigned 12,757,134       12,954,579       

Total Fund Balances 69,074,621       68,779,247       

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 75,952,558$     79,291,329$     

See Notes to Financial Statements

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Total Governmental Funds
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2012 2011

Fund balances of governmental funds 69,074,621$      68,779,247$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included as financial resources
in governmental fund activity        549,978,172        545,606,017 

Compensated absences have not been included in the governmental fund activity. (812,642)            (740,737)            

CJPIA retrospective liability has not been included in the governmental fund activity. (41,320)              -                         

Revenues reported as deferred revenue in the governmental funds are recognized
in the Statement of Activities.  These are included in the intergovernmental revenues
in the governmental fund activity.               684,442               581,427 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds must be added to the
Statement of Net Assets.            1,093,965            1,073,016 

Net assets of governmental activities 619,977,238$    615,298,970$    

See Notes to Financial Statements

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
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Special Capital

Revenue Fund Projects Fund

Other

Miscellaneous City Capital Governmental

General Grants Projects Funds

Revenues:

Taxes 30,106,150$     -$                     -$                     -$                     

Licenses and permits 1,289,809         -                       -                       -                       

Intergovernmental 1,301,890         3,101,160         -                       3,112,985         

Charges for services 1,100,414         -                       -                       -                       

Use of money and property 942,544            394                   -                       18,263              

Fines and forfeitures 374,666            -                       -                       

Contributions 12,155              -                       -                       -                       

Miscellaneous 157,250            -                       -                       -                       

Total Revenues 35,284,878       3,101,554         -                       3,131,248         

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 4,514,765         -                       -                       -                       

Public safety 9,713,168         -                       -                       99,996              

Community development 2,707,274         41,977              -                       77,396              

Public works 6,610,866         -                       -                       1,571,056         

Parks and recreation 3,217,560         -                       -                       -                       

Capital outlay -                       -                       12,668,248       -                       

Total Expenditures 26,763,633       41,977              12,668,248       1,748,448         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 8,521,245         3,059,577         (12,668,248)      1,382,800         

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in 40,517              -                       12,668,248       -                       

Transfers out (8,938,843)        (3,255,585)        -                       (514,337)           

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (8,898,326)        (3,255,585)        12,668,248       (514,337)           

Net change in fund balances (377,081)           (196,008)           -                       868,463            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 68,645,113       (428,679)           -                       562,813            

Fund Balances, End of Year 68,268,032$     (624,687)$         -$                     1,431,276$       

See Notes to Financial Statements

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
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2012 2011

Revenues:

Taxes 30,106,150$     29,616,877$     

Licenses and permits 1,289,809         1,062,646         

Intergovernmental 7,516,035         6,094,250         

Charges for services 1,100,414         1,014,934         

Use of money and property 961,201            1,169,515         

Fines and forfeitures 374,666            373,906            

Contributions 12,155              12,070              

Miscellaneous 157,250            319,363            

Total Revenues 41,517,680       39,663,561       

Expenditures:

Current:

General government 4,514,765         4,249,263         

Public safety 9,813,164         9,973,477         

Community development 2,826,647         2,739,393         

Public works 8,181,922         7,993,308         

Parks and recreation 3,217,560         3,117,227         

Capital outlay 12,668,248       26,922,744       

Total Expenditures 41,222,306       54,995,412       

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 295,374            (15,331,851)      

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers in 12,708,765       27,683,833       

Transfers out (12,708,765)      (27,683,833)      

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                        -                        

Net change in fund balances 295,374            (15,331,851)      

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 68,779,247       84,111,098       

Fund Balances, End of Year 69,074,621$     68,779,247$     

See Notes to Financial Statements

Total Governmental Funds

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL
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2012 2011

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 295,374$           (15,331,851)$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the
Statement of Activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense.  This is the amount by which capital outlays
exceeded depreciation expense in the current period.            5,146,822          17,061,500 

Compensated absences expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. (71,905)              19,482               

CJPIA retrospective deposit liability expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds. (41,320)              -                         

Revenues reported as deferred revenue in the governmental funds are recognized
in the Statement of Activities.  These are included in the intergovernmental revenues
in the governmental fund activity.               103,015          (1,393,874)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds.
The net revenues (expenses) of the internal service funds is reported with
governmental activities.                 20,078               (48,357)

Change in net assets of governmental activities 5,452,064$        306,900$           

See Notes to Financial Statements

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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2012 2011

Assets:

Current:

Cash and investments 873,301$          746,363$          

Total Current Assets 873,301            746,363            

Noncurrent:

Vehicles - net of accumulated depreciation 220,664            326,653            

Total Noncurrent Assets 220,664            326,653            

Total Assets 1,093,965         1,073,016         

Liabilities and Net Assets:

Liabilities: -                        -                        

Total Liabilities -                        -                        

Net Assets:

Invested in capital assets 220,664            326,653            

Unrestricted 873,301            746,363            

Total Net Assets 1,093,965         1,073,016         

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 1,093,965$       1,073,016$       

See Notes to Financial Statements

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Vehicle Replacement Fund

Governmental Activities -

Internal Service Fund
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2012 2011

Operating Revenues:

Charges for services 111,653$          55,252$            

Miscellaneous -                        1,000                

Total Operating Revenues 111,653            56,252              

Operating Expenses:

Depreciation expense 95,058              118,972            

Total Operating Expenses 95,058              118,972            

Operating Income (Loss) 16,595              (62,720)             

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Interest revenue 10,536              12,363              

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets (7,053)               2,000                

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 3,483                14,363              

Changes in Net Assets 20,078              (48,357)             

Net Assets:

Beginning of Year 1,073,016         1,121,373         

Prior Period Adjustment 871                   -                        

Beginning of Year, as restated 1,073,887         1,121,373         

End of Year 1,093,965$       1,073,016$       

See Notes to Financial Statements

Vehicle Replacement Fund

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Governmental Activities -

Internal Service Fund
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2012 2011

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from users 111,653$          56,252$            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 111,653            56,252              

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:

Purchase of capital assets -                        (26,555)             

Proceeds from sales of capital assets 4,749                2,000                

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities 4,749                (24,555)             

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest received 10,536              12,363              

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 10,536              12,363              

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 126,938            44,060              

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 746,363            702,303            

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 873,301$          746,363$          

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss) 16,595$            (62,720)$           

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)

to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation expense 95,058              118,972            

Total Adjustments 95,058              118,972            

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 111,653$          56,252$            

Non-Cash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:

See Notes to Financial Statements

Vehicle Replacement Fund

There were no non-cash investing, capital, or financing activities during the year ended June 30, 2012.

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Governmental Activities -

Internal Service Fund
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CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

 

 

NOTE 1:   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The basic financial statements of the City of Laguna Niguel, California (City) are prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental agencies.  The Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting 
principles.  The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are described below. 
 
A. Financial Reporting Entity 

 
The City of Laguna Niguel was incorporated on December 1, 1989 under the general laws of the State of 
California and enjoys all the rights and privileges pertaining to such “General Law” cities. The City operates 
under a council-manager form of government and currently provides public safety, animal control, planning, 
building, code enforcement, engineering, street and park maintenance, street lighting, parks and recreation 
programs and general administrative services. 

     
This report includes all fund types of the City of Laguna Niguel (the “primary government”).  The City does not 
include any component units for fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.  Component units are entities for which the 
City is considered to be financially accountable.  The City is considered to be financially accountable for an 
organization if the City appoints a voting majority of that organization’s governing body and the City is able to 
impose its will on that organization, or there is a potential for that organization to provide specific financial 
benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the City.  The City is also considered to be financially 
accountable if that organization is fiscally dependent (i.e., it is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes, set rates or 
charges, or issue bonded debt without approval from the City).  In certain cases, other organizations are 
included as component units if the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that their 
exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

 
B. Basis of Accounting, Measurement Focus, and Financial Statement Presentation 

 
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting 
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that 
comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. 
Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for 
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 

Government-wide financial statements (the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) display 
information about the reporting government as a whole.  Governmental activities, which are generally 
supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions, are reported 
separately from business-type activities, which are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties.  Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component 
units for which the primary government is financially accountable.  The City has no business-type activities 
or discretely presented component units, and therefore, the statements reflect only activity from 
governmental activities. 
 
These basic financial statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting.  Accordingly, all of the City’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets (as 
well as infrastructure assets) and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net 
Assets.  The Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets through a comparison between direct 
expenses and program revenues for each function of the City’s governmental activities.  Direct expenses 
are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific program or function.  Program revenues include (a) 
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions 
that are restricted to meeting the operational needs of a particular program or function, and (c) fees, grants 
and contributions that are restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of capital assets.  Revenues 
that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 
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CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

 

 

NOTE 1:   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements.  Eliminations have been made in the Statement of Activities so that internal payments to the  
Vehicle Replacement Fund do not duplicate certain vehicle depreciation expenses in the Vehicle 
Replacement Fund. 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

 
Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds 
aggregated.  The City has presented all major funds that have met the applicable criteria. 
 
All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial resources" measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities 
are included on the Balance Sheet.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and 
other financing uses) in net current assets.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are 
recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance 
expenditures of the current period. 
 
Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except for revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days 
after year-end), which are recognized when due.  The primary revenue sources, which have been treated 
as susceptible to accrual by the City, are property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, intergovernmental 
revenues, and other taxes.  Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund 
liability is incurred. 
 
Deferred revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the “measurable” and “available” criteria 
for recognition in the current period.  Deferred revenues also arise when the government receives 
resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring 
qualifying expenditures.  In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the 
government has a legal claim to the resources, the deferred revenue is removed and revenue is 
recognized. 
 
The reconciliations of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial Statements are 
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
 General Fund - the City’s primary operating fund that accounts for all financial resources of the general 

government except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 

 Miscellaneous Grants Fund - accounts for revenues received and expenditures made for various City 
projects fully or partially funded by outside grants.    Funding sources include the State of California, 
the Orange County Transportation Authority and the U.S. Department of Energy. 

 
 City Capital Projects Fund - accounts for the expenditures relating to the City’s individual capital 

projects. 
 

Additionally, the City reports non-major governmental funds.  These non-major governmental funds are 
Special Revenue Funds which account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or 
committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service and capital projects. 

 
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 

 
Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Assets, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each proprietary fund. 
 

26



CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

 

 

NOTE 1:   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent) are included on 
the Statement of Net Assets.  The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 
presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets.  Under the accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized 
in the period in which the liability is incurred.  In these funds, receivables have been recorded as revenue 
and provisions have been made for uncollectible amounts.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Government Entities that Use 
Proprietary Fund Accounting, the City applies all GASB pronouncements currently in effect as well as 
Financial Accounting Standard Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board 
(APB) Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting Procedure issued on 
or before November 30, 1989. 
 
Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary 
operations of the fund.  All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues.  Operating expenses 
are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund.  All other expenses are 
reported as nonoperating expenses. 
 
The City has one proprietary fund, the Vehicle Replacement Internal Service Fund, which accounts for 
interdepartmental operations where it is the stated intent that costs of providing services to the departments 
of the City on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily by charges to the user departments. 

 
C. Investments 

 
Investments are reported in the accompanying financial statements at quoted fair value.  Changes in fair value 
that occur during the fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal year. Investment 
income includes interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation, 
maturity, or sale of investments. 

 
The City pools cash and investments of all funds.  Each fund’s share in this pool is displayed in the 
accompanying financial statements as cash and investments.  Investment income earned by the pooled 
investments is allocated to the various funds based on each fund’s average cash and investment balance, 
except for investment income associated with funds not legally required to receive pooled investment income, 
which has been assigned to and recorded as revenue of the General Fund, as provided by California 
Government Code 53647. 

 
D. Cash Equivalents 

 
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near their maturity that they 
present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates.  Cash equivalents generally 
have an original maturity date of three months or less from the date of purchase.  Cash equivalents also 
represent the proprietary fund’s share in the cash and investments pool of the City. 

 
E. Capital Assets 

 
All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available.  
Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date contributed.  The City’s 
policy is to capitalize all assets with an initial, individual cost equal to or more than $5,000 and all computer and 
digital equipment with a useful life of more than one year.  

 
Capital assets, which include land, buildings and building improvements, park improvements, swimming pool, 
skate park bowl, furniture and equipment, vehicles, construction in progress and infrastructure assets (street 
systems, storm drains, bridges, etc.), are reported in the governmental activities column of the Government-wide 
financial statements. 
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CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

 

 

NOTE 1:   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized.  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects 
are constructed. 

 
Depreciation has been provided on capital assets in the Government-wide financial statements.  Depreciation of 
all capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the total amount of depreciation 
taken over the years, called accumulated depreciation, is reported on the Statement of Net Assets as a 
reduction in the book value of capital assets.  Depreciation is reported using the straight-line method, which 
means the cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to expense 
each year until the asset is fully depreciated.  The City has assigned the useful lives listed below to capital 
assets: 
 

 
 

Asset  Years 

Curbs, gutters, sidewalks, catch basins and manholes   100 

Streets, street lights, storm drain, tunnel and bridges   75 

Buildings and building improvements  45 

Swimming pool and skatepark bowl       25 

Park improvements  15 

Furniture and equipment  5 - 10 

Vehicles   3 - 7 
 
 
 

F. Property Taxes 
 

Property tax revenue is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes have been levied providing they 
become available.  Available means due, or past due and receivable within the current period and collected 
within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter (not to exceed 60 days) to be used 
to pay liabilities in the current period. 

 
Under California law, property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties at up to 1% of assessed value, 
plus other increases approved by the voters.  The property taxes go into a pool, and are then allocated to the 
cities based on complex formulas.  The County of Orange collects property taxes for the City.  Tax liens attach 
annually as of 12:01 a.m. on the first day of January preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.  
Taxes are levied on July 1 and cover the fiscal period July 1 to June 30.  All secured personal property taxes 
and one-half of the taxes on real property are due November 1; the second installment is due February 1.  All 
taxes are delinquent, if unpaid, on December 10 and April 10, respectively.  Unsecured personal property taxes 
become due on March 1 each year, and are delinquent, if unpaid, on August 31. 

 
G. Compensated Absences 

 
Upon termination or retirement, permanent employees are entitled to receive compensation at their current base 
salary for all unused vacation leave, and 0%-50% of the value of unused sick leave depending on length of 
service. 

 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, a liability is recorded for 
unused vacation and similar compensatory leave balances since the employees’ entitlement to these balances 
are attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that virtually all of these balances will be 
liquidated by either paid time off or payments upon termination or retirement. 
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CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

 

 

NOTE 1:   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Under GASB Statement No. 16, a liability is recorded for unused sick leave balances only to the extent that it is 
probable that the unused balances will result in termination payments.  This is estimated by including in the 
liability the unused balances of employees currently entitled to receive termination payment, as well as those 
who are expected to become eligible to receive termination benefits as a result of continuing their employment 
with the City.  Other amounts of unused sick leave are excluded from the liability since their payment is 
contingent solely upon the occurrence of a future event (illness), which is outside the control of the City and the 
employee. 

 
H. Fund Balances 

 
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, 
Governmental Fund Financial Statement fund balances are classified in the following categories: 
 

Nonspendable – Nonspendable fund balances are items that are not expected to be converted to cash, 
such as prepaid items and deposits, or items that are required to be maintained intact, such as principal of 
an endowment or revolving loan funds. 

 
Restricted – Restricted fund balances include amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes 
stipulated by external resources providers, such as grant providers, constitutionally, or through enabling 
legislation.  Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers. 
 
Committed – Committed fund balances include amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes 
determined by formal action of the government’s highest level of decision making authority, i.e. adoption of 
the annual City Financial Reserves Policy and resolutions.  Commitments may be changed or lifted only by 
the government taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally.  The City Council is 
considered the highest authority for the City.  Commitments of fund balance are specified in the City’s 
Financial Reserves Policy which is reviewed and amended as appropriate on an annual basis by the City 
Council. 
 
Assigned – Assigned fund balances comprise amounts intended to be used by the government for specific 
purposes.  Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing 
body delegates the authority.  The City Council is the body authorized to assign amounts to a specific 
purpose.  In governmental funds, other than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents all 
amounts that are not classified as restricted or committed.  Resources in governmental funds other than the 
General Fund are to be used for the specific purpose of that fund. 
 
Unassigned – Unassigned fund balance is a residual (surplus) classification used for the General Fund only 
and includes amounts not contained in the other classifications.  Unassigned amounts in the General Fund 
are technically available for any purpose.  If a governmental fund, other than the General Fund, has a fund 
balance deficit, it will be reported as a negative amount in the unassigned classification in that fund. 

 
Spending Policy 
 

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which all restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned 
fund balances are available, the City’s policy is to apply in the following order, except for instances wherein 
an ordinance specifies the fund balance: 
 
 Restricted 
 Committed 
 Assigned 
 Unassigned 
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NOTE 1:   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 

I. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions.  
These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenditures, 
as well as contingent assets and liabilities.   Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions. 

 
J. Prepaid Items 

 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in both Government-wide and Fund financial statements. 

 
K. Comparative Data 

 
Comparative total data for the prior year has been presented in the accompanying basic financial statements in 
order to provide an understanding of changes in the City’s financial position and operations.  However, 
comparative data has not been presented in each of the statements since its inclusion would make the 
statements unduly complex and difficult to understand. 
 

NOTE 2:   RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
  

A. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Government-Wide 
Statement of Net Assets 

 
The Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds includes a reconciliation between Total Fund Balances – Total 
Governmental Funds as reported in the statement and Total Net Assets - Governmental Activities as reported in 
the Statement of Net Assets.  The following presents additional information related to the reconciliation: 

 
Capital Related Items 
 
When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the costs of 
those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  However, the Statement of Net Assets 
includes those capital assets among the assets of the City as a whole. 
 

Capital assets not being depreciated  $  278,111,849 

Capital assets, net of depreciation  271,866,323 

  $  549,978,172 

 
Non-Current Liability Transactions 

 
Non-current liabilities applicable to the City’s governmental activities including compensated absences and the 
California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (CJPIA) retrospective liability are not reported as fund liabilities in 
the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds, but are reported in the Statement of Net Assets.  Balances at June 
30, 2012, for compensated absences were as follows: 

 
Compensated absences, due within one year  $         182,391 

Compensated absences, due in more than one year  630,251 

CJPIA retrospective liability  41,320 

  $         853,962 
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NOTE 2:   RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 

Deferred Revenue 
 

Earned but unavailable revenue is reported as a liability in the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds but is 
reported as part of Net Assets in the Statement of Net Assets. 

 
Grant revenue  $         345,791 

Sales tax  160,000 

Triple flip  178,651 

  $         684,442 

 
Internal Service Fund 
 
An internal service fund is used by management for the financing of replacement vehicles to the City’s fleet.  
The cost is allocated to various functions within the General Fund.  The assets of the internal service fund are 
included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets.  The fund had no liabilities at fiscal year-end. 

 
Cash and investments  $         873,301 

Capital assets, net of depreciation  220,664 

  $      1,093,965 

 
B. Explanation of Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 

Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide Statement of Activities 
 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds includes a 
reconciliation between Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds as reported in the statement 
and Change in Net Assets - Governmental Activities as reported in the  Statement of Activities.  The following 
presents additional information related to the reconciliation: 

 
Capital Related Items 
 
When capital assets that are to be used in governmental activities are purchased or constructed, the resources 
expended for those assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.  However, in the Statement of 
Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation 
expense.  As a result, fund balance decreases by the amount of financial resources expended, whereas net 
assets decrease by the amount of depreciation expense charged for the year. 
 

Current year capital assets  $   11,547,916. 

Current year depreciation  (6,059,244) 

Current year deletions  (341,850) 

  $     5,146,822. 

 
Long-term Liability Transactions 

 
Some expenses, such as for compensated absences and the CJPIA retrospective liability, reported in the 
Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.  Compensated absence balances increased during FY 2011-12. 

 
Net change in compensated absences  $        (71,905) 

Net change in CJPIA retrospective liability  (41,320) 

  $      (113,225) 
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NOTE 2:   RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 
 
Deferred (Unavailable) Revenue 
 
The City earns a certain amount of revenue from sales tax and grants that is not considered available under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.  Therefore this revenue is not recognized as revenue in the fund financial 
statements. However, this revenue is recognized in the Statement of Activities in the year earned. 

   
Current year deferred revenue  $      684,442. 

Prior year deferred revenue  (581,427) 

  $      103,015. 

 
Internal Service Fund 

 
An internal service fund is used by management for the financing of replacement vehicles.  The cost is allocated 
to various functions within the General Fund.  The activity of the internal service fund is not included in the 
Statement or Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Funds, but is included 
in the Government-wide Statement of Activities. 

 
Charges for services  $        111,653. 

Use of money and property  10,536. 

Depreciation expense   (95,058) 

Gain (loss) on sale of capital asset   (7,053) 

  $          20,078. 

 
NOTE 3:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Cash and investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2012: 

     
Cash and cash equivalents:   

   Cash on hand  $                450 

   Demand Deposits  49,784 

         Total cash and cash equivalents  50,234 

Investments:   

   Certificate of deposit  59,575 

   U.S. Treasury money market mutual fund  48,029 

   State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  34,261,122 

   California Asset Management Program (CAMP)  6,035,335 

   Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST)  4,802,941 

   U.S. Treasury Notes  2,048,640 

   Federal Agency securities  25,047,020 

         Total investments  72,302,662 

         Total cash and cash equivalents  $    72,352,896 
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NOTE 3:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Investments Authorized by California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government 
Code Section 53601 and the City’s investment policy, which is more restrictive.  The table also identifies certain 
provisions of the California Government Code and the City’s investment policy that address interest rate risk, 
credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 

 
 

Authorized 
Investment Type 

 Maximum 
Maturity 

 Maximum % 
of Portfolio 

 Max. Investment in 
one Issuer (at cost) 

U.S. Treasury Obligations  5 Years  None  None 

Federal Agency Securities    5 Years  60%  25% 

California Asset Management Program (CAMP)  N/A  15%  $ 10 Million 

Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST)  N/A  15%  $ 10 Million 

State Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)  N/A  40%  $ 40 Million 

Insured Certificates of Deposit  5 Years  30%  $     250,000 

U.S. Treasury Money Market Mutual Funds  N/A  20%  10% 
 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by 
purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities 
so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as necessary to provide 
the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations. 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is 
provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity: 
 

 
    Remaining Maturity (in months) 

         
Investment 

Type 
 Total 

Investment 
 12 Months 

or Less 
 13 to 24 

Months 
 25 to 60 

Months 

U.S. Treasury Notes  $  2,048,640  $  1,012,230  $  1,036,410  $        - 

Federal Agency securities   25,047,020  11,238,570  4,227,140  9,581,310 

U.S. Treasury money market fund  48,029  48,029  -  -

Certificates of deposit  59,575  59,575  -  -

CAMP  6,035,335  6,035,335  -  -

CalTRUST  4,802,941  4,802,941  -  -

LAIF  34,261,122  34,261,122  -  -

Totals  $72,302,662  $57,457,802  $  5,263,550  $  9,581,310 
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NOTE 3:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization.  Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government 
Code or the City’s investment policy, and the actual rating as of the year end for each investment type: 

       

        Rating as of Year End 

Investment 
Type 

 
Total 

Investment 

 Min. 
Legal 
Rating 

 
Not 

Required  AAA  Unrated 

U.S. Treasury Note  $  2,048,640  N/A  $  2,048,640  $        -  $        - 
Federal Agency 
 securities 

 
25,047,020  N/A  -  25,047,020  - 

U.S. Treasury MMF  48,029  N/A  -  48,029  - 

C.D.s  59,575  N/A  -  59,575  - 

CAMP  6,035,335  N/A  -  6,035,335  - 

CalTRUST  4,802,941  N/A  -  4,802,941  - 

LAIF  34,261,122  N/A  -  -  34,261,122

Totals  $72,302,662    $  2,048,640  $  35,933,325  $  34,261,122 

 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The investment policy of the City contains a limitation on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer of 
Federal Agency securities to a maximum of 25% of total investments.  The City was in compliance with this 
limitation at June 30, 2012 and throughout the fiscal year.   
 
Investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total City investments at June 30, 2012 are as 
follows: 

 

Issuer  
Investment 

Type  
Reported 
Amount 

Federal Home Loan Bank  Federal Agency securities  $   11,437,010 

Federal National Mortgage Association  Federal Agency securities  8,340,530 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp.  Federal Agency securities  4,224,750 

CAMP  Investment pool  6,035,335 

CalTRUST  Investment pool  4,802,941 

LAIF  Investment pool  34,261,122 
 

Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a 
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in 
the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the 
failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the 
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California 
Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit 
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than as follows.  The California 
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units  
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NOTE 3:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so 
waived by the governmental unit).  The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal 
at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the City.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure 
city deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured City deposits. 
The City’s investment policy requires delivery vs. payment procedures and that all securities be held in third-
party safekeeping by a custodial financial institution. 
 
As of June 30, 2012, all of the City’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of Federal depository insurance 
limits were collateralized by an interest in an undivided collateral pool as required by State law.  In addition, all 
investments were held by the third-party safekeeping institution. 
 
A provision of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act provides temporary unlimited 
deposit insurance coverage for noninterest-bearing transaction accounts at all FDIC-insured institutions.  This 
provision was effective from December 31, 2010 and will remain effective until December 31, 2012.  
Noninterest-bearing transaction accounts is defined as an account (1) with respect to which interest is neither 
accrued nor paid; (2) on which the depositor or account holder is permitted to make withdrawals by negotiable or 
transferable instrument, payment orders of withdrawal, telephone or other electronic media transfers, or other 
similar items for the purpose of making payments or transfers to third parties or others; and (3) on which the 
FDIC-insured depository institutions does not reserve the right to require advance notice of an intended 
withdrawal.  As of June 30, 2012, the City maintains cash deposits that are temporarily covered by this 
provision.  
 
Investment in State Investment Pool 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by California 
Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value 
of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon 
the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the 
amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis.  Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are 
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state funds, securities with interest 
rates that vary according to changes in rates greater than a one-for-one basis, and structured notes. 
 
California Asset Management Program 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the California Asset Management Program (CAMP).  CalTRUST is an 
investment pool offered by the California Asset Management Trust (the Trust).  The Trust is a joint powers 
authority and public agency created by the Declaration of Trust and established under the provisions of the 
California Joint Exercise of Powers Act (California Government Code Sections 6500 et seq., or the "Act") for the 
purpose of exercising the common power of its Participants to invest certain proceeds of debt issues and 
surplus funds.  The Trust’s activities are directed by a Board of Trustees, all of whom are employees of the 
California public agencies that are participants in the Trust.  The Pool's investments are limited to investments 
permitted by subdivisions (a) to (n), inclusive, of Section 53601 of the California Government Code.  The City 
reports investments in CAMP at the fair value amounts provided by CAMP, which is the same as the value of 
the pool share.  CAMP is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

 
Investment Trust of California 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Investment Trust of California Short-Term Fund (CalTRUST).  
CalTRUST is a joint powers authority and public agency created by the Declaration of Trust and established 
under the provisions of the California Joint Exercise of Powers Act (California Government Code Sections 6500 
et seq., or the "Act") for the purpose of exercising the common power of its Participants to invest certain 
proceeds of debt issues and surplus funds.  The Trust’s activities are directed by a Board of Trustees, all of 
whom are employees of the California public agencies that are participants in the Trust.  The Pool's investments 
are limited to investments permitted by subdivisions (a) to (n), inclusive, of Section 53601 and 53635 of the 
California Government Code.  The City reports investments in CalTRUST at the fair value amounts provided by  
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NOTE 3:   CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
CalTRUST, which is the same as the value of the pool share.  CalTRUST is not registered with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission. 

 
NOTE 4:   CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
The following is a summary of changes in the capital assets for governmental activities during the fiscal year: 
 

           

  
Beginning 
Balance  

Prior Period 
Adjustment  Increases  Decreases  

Ending 
Balance 

Non-depreciable assets:           

  Land  $ 271,068,667.  $       -  $       -  $       -  $ 271,068,667. 

  Construction in progress  25,891,302.  -  5,668,409.  (24,516,529)  7,043,182.
     Total non-depreciable 
        assets 

 
296,959,969.  -  5,668,409.  (24,516,529)  278,111,849.

          

Depreciable assets:  .        

  Buildings and improvements  23,922,907.  -  24,935,145.  -  48,858,052. 

  Park improvements  24,461,212.  -  750,741.  (613,085)  24,598,868. 

  Swimming pool  2,110,391.  -  264,044.  -  2,374,435. 

  Furniture and equipment  1,371,549.  -  465,853.  (521,686)  1,315,716. 

  Vehicles  1,015,208.  38,558.  -.  (26,559)  1,027,207. 

  Infrastructure  309,979,823.  -  3,980,253.  -  313,960,076.

     Total depreciable assets  362,861,090.  38,558.  30,396,036.  (1,161,330)  392,134,354. 

           
Less accumulated 
  depreciation: 

 
  

  
     

  Buildings and improvements  (5,077,496)  -  (537,958)  -  (5,615,454) 

  Park improvements  (14,426,522)  (774,664)  (1,195,006)  284,695.  (16,111,497) 

  Swimming pool  (1,476,618)  -  (104,592)  -  (1,581,210) 

  Furniture and equipment  (956,172)  -  (249,382)  508,226.  (697,328) 

  Vehicles  (688,551)  (37,687)  (95,058)  14,753.  (806,543) 

  Infrastructure  (91,263,029)  -  (3,972,306)  -  (95,235,335) 

     Total accumulated 
       depreciation 

  
(113,888,388)  

 
(812,351)  (6,154,302)  807,674.  (120,047,367) 

           
     Total depreciable 
       assets, net 

 
248,972,702.  (773,793)  24,241,734.  (353,656)  272,086,987. 

           
     Governmental activities 
       capital assets, net 

 
$ 545,932,671.  $ (773,793)  $ 29,910,143.  $(24,870,185)  $ 550,198,836. 
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NOTE 4:   CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 

Infrastructure assets comprise a significant portion of capital assets.  Infrastructure assets are further identified by 
type as follows: 

 
         

  
Beginning 
Balance  Increases  Decreases  

Ending 
Balance 

Infrastructure assets:         

  Streets  $ 275,482,844.  $  3,879,527.  $         -  $ 279,362,371. 

  Storm drains  20,399,315.  100,726.  -  20,500,041. 

  Traffic signals  10,229,533.  -  -  10,229,533. 

  Bridges  2,683,091.  -  -  2,683,091. 

  Trails  1,185,040.  -  -  1,185,040. 

     Total infrastructure assets  309,979,823.  3,980,253.  -  313,960,076. 

         
Less accumulated
  depreciation: 

 
       

  Streets  (78,634,948)  (3,466,564)  -  (82,101,512) 

  Storm drains  (7,618,416)  (271,463)  -  (7,889,879) 

  Traffic signals  (2,660,773)  (135,665)  -  (2,796,438) 

  Bridges  (1,354,834)  (34,954)  -  (1,389,788) 

  Trails  (994,058)  (63,660)  -  (1,057,718) 
     Total accumulated 
       depreciation 

  
(91,263,029)  (3,972,306)  -  (95,235,335) 

         
     Total infrastructure 
       assets, net 

 
$ 218,716,794.  $         7,947.  $         -  $ 218,724,741. 

 
 
 
Depreciation expense was charged to the City’s programs as follows: 

 
Governmental activities:   

  General government  $         82,014 

  Public safety  39,385 

  Community development  26,863 

  Public works  5,270,215 

  Parks and recreation  735,825 

     Total depreciation expense – governmental activities  $    6,154,302 
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NOTE 5:   INTERFUND ACTIVITY 
 
The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2012, is as follows: 

 
 

Interfund receivables/payables:   

  Due from:   

     Miscellaneous Grants Fund  $       628,262 

     Community Development Block Grant Fund  2,650 

          Total due to General Fund  $       630,912 

 
 

All interfund balances are short-term in nature and are expected to be repaid within one year.  The Miscellaneous 
Grants and Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds had negative cash balances at June 30, 2012.  
These amounts have been reclassified as interfund receivables/payables for financial statement purposes. 

 
 

  Transfers in 

       

 
 General 

Fund  
City Capital 

Projects Fund  Totals 

Transfers out:       

General Fund  $          -  $    8,938,843  $    8,938,843 
Miscellaneous Grants Funds  -  3,255,585  3,255,585
Nonmajor Governmental Funds  40,517  473,820  514,337 

Total transfers out  $             40,517  $  12,668,248  $  12,708,765 
 
 
 
Most transfers relate to capital projects.  Total capital project transfers were $12,668,248.  The City accounts for all 
capital projects in a separate fund.  These projects are approved through the annual budget process and each project 
is approved with an identified funding source(s).  Most funding sources are identified as the General Fund, with the 
remainder funded by restricted revenue sources (e.g. Measure M, Prop 1B, CDBG, etc.). 

 
NOTE 6:   LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 was as follows: 

 
 

  
Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Reductions  

Ending 
Balance 

         

Compensated absences  $         740,737  $       634,542  $     (562,637)  $         812,642 

CJPIA retrospective liability  -  41,320  -  41,320 

        Total long-term liabilities  $         740,737  $       675,862  $     (562,637)  $         853,962 
 

   
Of the balance due for compensated absences, the amount of the ending balance that is due within one year is 
$182,391.  Payments for compensated absences and the CJPIA retrospective liability are recorded in the General 
Fund. 
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NOTE 7:   LIABILITY, PROPERTY, AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
Description of Self-Insurance Pool Pursuant to Joint Powers Agreement 
 
The City of Laguna Niguel is a member of the CALIFORNIA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY 
(Authority).  The Authority is composed of 123 California public entities and is organized under a joint powers 
agreement pursuant to California Government Code §6500 et seq.  The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and 
administer programs for the pooling of self-insured losses, to purchase excess insurance or reinsurance, and to 
arrange for group purchased insurance for property and other lines of coverage.  The California JPIA began covering 
claims of its members in 1978.  Each member government has an elected official as its representative on the Board of 
Directors.  The Board operates through a nine-member Executive Committee. 

 
Self-Insurance Programs of the Authority 
 
Each member pays an annual contribution (formerly called the primary deposit) to cover estimated losses for the 
coverage period.  This initial funding is paid at the beginning of the coverage period.  After the close of the coverage 
period, outstanding claims are valued.  A retrospective deposit computation is then conducted annually thereafter until 
all claims incurred during the coverage period are closed on a pool-wide basis.  This subsequent cost re-allocation 
among members based on actual claim development can result in adjustments of either refunds or additional deposits 
required. 
 
The total funding requirement for self-insurance programs is estimated using actuarial models and pre-funded through 
the annual contribution.  Costs are allocated to individual agencies based on exposure (payroll) and experience 
(claims) relative to other members of the risk-sharing pool.  Additional information regarding the cost allocation 
methodology is provided below. 

 
A. Liability Program 

 
In the liability program claims are pooled separately between police and non-police exposures.  (1) The payroll 
of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other members.  A variable credibility factor is determined 
for each member, which establishes the weight applied to payroll and the weight applied to losses within the 
formula.  (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs up to $30,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated 
as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the first layer.  (3) The second layer of losses includes 
incurred costs from $30,000 to $750,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s 
total incurred costs within the second layer.  (4) Incurred costs in excess of $750,000 up to the reinsurance 
attachment point of $5 million are distributed based on the outcome of cost allocation within the first and second 
loss layers.  (5) Costs of covered claims from $5 million to $10 million are paid under a reinsurance contract 
subject to a $2.5 million annual aggregate deductible.  Costs of covered claims from $10 million to $15 million 
are paid under two reinsurance contracts subject to a combined $3 million annual aggregate deductible.  On a 
cumulative basis for all 2011-12 reinsurance contracts the annual aggregate deductible is $5.5 million.  (6) Costs 
of covered claims from $15 million up to $50 million are covered through excess insurance policies. 
 
The overall coverage limit for each member including all layers of coverage is $50 million per occurrence. 
 
Costs of covered claims for subsidence losses are paid by reinsurance and excess insurance with a pooled sub-
limit of $35 million per occurrence.  This $35 million subsidence sub-limit is composed of (a) $5 million retained 
within the pool’s SIR, (b) $10 million in reinsurance and (c) $20 million in excess insurance.  The excess 
insurance layer has a $20 million annual aggregate. 
 
CJPIA Retrospective Deposit Liability 
 
Retrospective deposits and refunds are cost allocation adjustments to prior coverage periods. Some claims take 
many years to resolve and over time their estimated value changes.  The retrospective adjustments are 
calculated annually and take into consideration all the changes in claim values that occurred during the most 
recent year.  The formula is designed to adequately cover the cost of claims brought against members and to 
ensure the overall financial strength and security of the Authority.  The formula was developed to be as 
equitable as possible by taking into consideration both risk exposure and claims experience of individual 
members.  CJPIA has temporarily deferred the payment on retrospective deposits owed to the Authority by  
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NOTE 7:   LIABILITY, PROPERTY, AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Members.  The payment deferral period extends until July 1, 2013 for the Liability program and July 1, 2015 for 
the Workers’ Compensation program.  Retrospective deposit payments are scheduled to resume on these 
dates.  The October 2011 annual retrospective adjustment is included in these balances.  The City at June 30, 
2012 had a liability program retrospective deposit due of $41,320. 
 
Optional Payment Plans 
 
When retrospective deposit payments resume as indicated above, members will have the opportunity to select 
from a variety of optional payment plans.  Discounts under the incentive plan are available to members choosing 
to voluntarily accelerate payment during the deferral period.  The City has chosen not to voluntarily accelerate 
payment at this time. 
 
After the deferral period, members choosing from among the optional payment plans will be subject to a 
moderate annual fee.  The fee is intended to provide a means for the Authority to recover otherwise foregone 
investment earnings and to serve as a minor disincentive for the selection of longer financing terms. 
  
Retrospective Balances will Change Annually 
 
Retrospective balances will change with each annual computation during the payment deferral period. Member 
balances may increase or decrease as a result of the most recent year’s claim development.  Accordingly, some 
members who chose to pay off their balance in full may be required to pay additional retrospective deposits in 
the future based on the outcome of actual claim development reflected in subsequent retrospective deposit 
computations.  Conversely, if claim development is favorable then subsequent retrospective adjustments could 
potentially result in refunds to the member. 
 
More information on the CJPIA retrospective balances can be found on the CJPIA website at CJPIA.org. 

 
B. Workers’ Compensation 

 
In the workers’ compensation program claims are pooled separately between public safety (police and fire) and 
non-public safety exposures.  (1) The payroll of each member is evaluated relative to the payroll of other 
members.  A variable credibility factor is determined for each member, which establishes the weight applied to 
payroll and the weight applied to losses within the formula.  (2) The first layer of losses includes incurred costs 
up to $50,000 for each occurrence and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the 
first layer.  (3) The second layer of losses includes incurred costs from $50,000 to $100,000 for each occurrence 
and is evaluated as a percentage of the pool’s total incurred costs within the second layer.  (4) Incurred costs in 
excess of $100,000 up to the reinsurance attachment point of $2 million are distributed based on the outcome of 
cost allocation within the first and second loss layers.  (5) Costs of covered claims from $2 million up to statutory 
limits are paid under a reinsurance policy.  Protection is provided per statutory liability under California Workers’ 
Compensation Law. 
 
Employer’s Liability losses are pooled among members to $2 million.  Coverage from $2 million to $5 million is 
purchased as part of a reinsurance policy, and Employer’s Liability losses from $5 million to $10 million are 
pooled among members. 
 
CJPIA Refund Balances Long-term Receivable 
 
Retrospective deposits and refunds are cost allocation adjustments to prior coverage periods.  Some claims 
take many years to resolve and over time their estimated value changes.  The retrospective adjustments are 
calculated annually and take into consideration all the changes in claim values that occurred during the most 
recent year.  The formula is designed to adequately cover the cost of claims brought against members and to 
ensure the overall financial strength and security of the Authority.  The formula was developed to be as 
equitable as possible by taking into consideration both risk exposure and claims experience of individual 
members.  CJPIA has temporarily deferred the payment on retrospective deposits owed to the Authority by 
members.  The payment deferral period extends until July 1, 2013 for the Liability program and July 1, 2015 for 
the Workers’ Compensation program.  Retrospective deposit payments are scheduled to resume on these  
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dates.  The October 2011 annual retrospective adjustment is included in these balances.  The City at June 30, 
2012 had a retrospective refund due to the City in the amount of $128,632. 
 
During the payment deferral period, members with a retrospective refund balance will receive a portion of the 
balance as a credit against other charges on the annual contribution invoice.  For the FY 2011-2012 coverage 
year, the refund amount will be 25%.  The percentage to be refunded in future years will be set on an annual 
basis by the Executive Committee of CJPIA.  Once the payment deferral period has concluded in each program, 
subsequent retrospective refund adjustments will be applied in full (100%) as a credit on the annual contribution 
invoice. 
 
More information on the CJPIA retrospective balances can be found on the CJPIA website at CJPIA.org. 

 
Purchased Insurance 
 
The City also purchases insurance through the Authority and other insurance brokers for the following programs: 

 
A. Pollution Legal Liability Insurance 

 
The City of Laguna Niguel participates in the pollution legal liability insurance program (formerly called 
environmental insurance) which is available through the Authority.  The policy covers sudden and gradual 
pollution of scheduled property, streets, and storm drains owned by the City of Laguna Niguel.  Coverage is on a 
claims-made basis.  There is a $50,000 deductible.  The Authority has a limit of $50 million for the 3-year period 
from July 1, 2011 through July 1, 2014.  Each member of the Authority has a $10 million sub-limit during the 3-
year term of the policy. 

 
B. Property Insurance 

 
The City of Laguna Niguel participates in the all-risk property protection program of the Authority.  This 
insurance protection is underwritten by several insurance companies. City of Laguna Niguel property is currently 
insured according to a schedule of covered property submitted by the City of Laguna Niguel to the 
Authority. City of Laguna Niguel property currently has all-risk property insurance protection in the amount of 
$31,814,346.  There is a $5,000 deductible per occurrence except for non-emergency vehicle insurance which 
has a $1,000 deductible.  Premiums for the coverage are paid annually and are not subject to retrospective 
adjustments. 

 
C. Earthquake and Flood Insurance 

 
The City of Laguna Niguel purchases earthquake and flood insurance on a portion of its property through an 
insurance broker.  City of Laguna Niguel property currently has earthquake protection in the amount of $36 
million.  There is a deductible of 5% per unit of value for the earthquake insurance.  The flood insurance requires 
a minimum deductible of $50,000 on the City Hall and Sea County Senior and Community Center properties and 
a minimum deductible of $100,000 on the YCMA property. 

 
D. Crime Insurance 

 
The City of Laguna Niguel purchases crime insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 with a $2,500 
deductible.  The fidelity coverage is provided through the Authority.  Premiums are paid annually and are not 
subject to retrospective adjustments. 

 
E. Special Event Tenant User Liability Insurance 

 
The City of Laguna Niguel further protects against liability damages by requiring tenant users of certain property 
to purchase low-cost tenant user liability insurance for certain activities on agency property.  The insurance 
premium is paid by the tenant user and is paid to the City of Laguna Niguel according to a schedule.  The City of 
Laguna Niguel then pays for the insurance.  The insurance is arranged by the Authority. 
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Adequacy of Protection 
 
During the past three fiscal years, none of the above programs of protection experienced settlements or judgments 
that exceeded pooled or insured coverage.  There were also no significant reductions in pooled or insured liability 
coverage in FY 2011-2012. 

 
NOTE 8:   CLASSIFICATION OF NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCE 

 
A. Net Assets 

 
Net assets are the excess of all the City’s assets over all its liabilities, regardless of fund.  Net assets are 
classified into three categories as follows: 

 
 Invested in capital assets describe the portion of net assets which is represented by the current net book 

value of the City’s capital assets, including infrastructure. 
 

 Restricted net assets describe the portion of net assets, which is restricted as to use by the terms and 
conditions of agreements with creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments 
and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

 
 Unrestricted net assets describe the portion of net assets, which are not restricted as to use. 

 
B. Fund Balances 

 
The City has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental 
Fund Type Definitions.  GASB 54 establishes fund balance classifications based largely upon the extent to 
which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in 
governmental funds.  The Governmental Fund statements conform to this new classification.  Commitments and 
assignments are established by actions of the City Council and can be increased, reduced, or eliminated by 
similar actions. 
 
Details of the fund balance classifications at June 30, 2012 are as follows:  

 
           

  
General 

Fund  
Miscellaneous 

Grants   
Capital 
Projects  

Nonmajor 
Governmental  

 
Totals 

Nonspendable           

  Prepaid costs  $       367,671  $         -  $     -  $         -  $ 367,671 

  Deposits  1,960  -  -  -  1,960

          Total nonspendable  369,631  -  -  -  369,631

          

Restricted  .        

  Public safety  -  -  -  279,242  279,242 

  Community development  -  -  -  15  15 

  Streets  -  -  -  856,606  856,606 

  Air quality improvement  -  -  -  295,413  295,413 

          Total restricted  -  -  -  1,431,276  1,431,276 
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 NOTE 8:   CLASSIFICATION OF NET ASSETS AND FUND BALANCE (Continued) 

           

  
General 

Fund  
Miscellaneous 

Grants   
Capital 
Projects  

Nonmajor 
Governmental  

 
Totals 

Committed           

  Compensable leaves   812,642  -  -  -  812,642 

  Capital asset replacement:           

      Streets  20,102,718  -  -  -  20,102,718 

      Other capital assets  6,700,906  -  -  -  6,700,906 

          Total committed  27,616,266  -  -  -  27,616,266 

           

Assigned  .        

  Continuing appropriations:          

      Capital projects:          
         Chapparosa parking 
             lot improvements            

 
115,000  -  -  -  115,000 

         La Plata landscape 
             improvements 

 
281,526  -  -  -  281,526 

         Botanical Preserve 
             water conservation 

 
118,000  -  -  -  118,000 

         Crown Valley Park 
             master plan 

 
562,727  -  -  -  562,727 

         Sea Country flooring 
             replacement 

 
289,000  -  -  -  289,000 

         Salt Creek Corridor 
             enhancement 

 
175,000  -  -  -  175,000 

         Crown Valley Parkway 
             widening - phase I 

 
90,054  -  -  -  90,054 

         Crown Valley Parkway 
             widening - phase II 

 
1,500,000  -  -  -  1,500,000 

         Paseo De Colinas 
             bridge retrofit 

 
392,558  -  -  -  392,558 

         LN Gateway Specific 
             Plan improvements 

 
903,892  -  -  -  903,892 

         La Veta neighborhood 
             improvements 

 
432,456  -  -  -  432,456 

         Annual street 
             resurfacing 

 
12,738,439  -  -  -  12738,439 

         Annual sidewalk 
             program 

 
413,162  -  -  -  413,162 

         OCTA Tier I 
             cleanup 

 
243,960  -  -  -  243,960 

         Laguna Niguel library 
             expansion 

 
290,683  -  -  -  290,683 

         Permanent City Hall  86,702  -  -  -  86,702 

         Other projects  2,128,185  -  -  -  2,128,185 
      General government 
          operations 

 
470,599  -  -  -  470,599 

      Public safety operations  387,521  -  -  -  387,521 
      Community development 
          operations 

 
121,609  -  -  -  121,609 
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General 

Fund  
Miscellaneous 

Grants   
Capital 
Projects  

Nonmajor 
Governmental  

 
Totals 

          
   Public works operations 

 
775,066  -  -  -  775,066 

   Parks and recreation 
       operations 

 
393,313  -  -  -  393,313 

   Streets and roads  3,981,661  -  -  -  3,981,661 

   Senior citizen building  9,201  -  -  -  9,201 

          Total assigned  26,900,314  -  -  -  26,900,314 

           

Unassigned  13,381,821  (624,687)  -  -  12,757,134 

           

          Total fund balance  $  68,268,032  $       (624,687)  $     -  $    1,431,276  $  69,074,621
 
  
The fund balances assigned to streets and roads and senior citizen building represent the fund balances at June 30, 2012 of 
separate funds that are maintained for budgetary purposes.  The unassigned fund balance in the General Fund consists of the 
$13,381,821 budgetary reserve for economic uncertainty. 
 
Accumulated Fund Deficits 
 
The following funds reported a deficit in fund balance at June 30, 2012.  This deficit is the result of unavailable grant revenue at June 
30, 2012 and will be eliminated upon receipt of the grant reimbursement in the following fiscal year. 
 
 

Fund  Amount 

Special Revenue Funds:   

    Miscellaneous Grants  $     (624,687) 
 

NOTE 9:   JOINT VENTURE 
 

Orange County Fire Authority 
 
In January 1995, the City of Laguna Niguel entered into a joint powers agreement with the Cities of Buena Park, 
Cypress, Dana Point, Irvine, Laguna Hills, Lake Forest, La Palma, Los Alamitos, Mission Viejo, Placentia, San 
Clemente, San Juan Capistrano, Seal Beach, Stanton, Tustin, Villa Park, and Yorba Linda and the County of Orange 
to create the Orange County Fire Authority (Authority). Since the creation of the Authority, the Cities of Laguna 
Woods, Rancho Santa Margarita, Westminster and Aliso Viejo joined the Authority as members eligible for fire 
protection services. The purpose of the Authority is to provide for mutual fire protection, prevention and suppression 
services and related and incidental services including, but not limited to, emergency medical and transport services, 
as well as providing facilities and personnel for such services. The effective date of formation was March 1, 1995. The 
Authority’s governing board consists of one representative from each City and two from the County. The operations of 
the Authority are funded with structural fire fees collected by the County through the property tax roll for the 
unincorporated area and on behalf of all member Cities except for the Cities of Stanton, Tustin, San Clemente, Buena 
Park, Placentia, Seal Beach and Westminster. The County pays all structural fire fees it collects to the Authority. The 
cities of Stanton, Tustin, San Clemente, Buena Park, Placentia, Seal Beach and Westminster are considered “cash 
contract cities” and accordingly, make cash contributions based on the Authority’s annual budget. No determination 
has been made as to each participant’s proportionate share of fund equity as of June 30, 2012. Upon dissolution of 
the Authority, all surplus money and property of the Authority will be conveyed or distributed to each member in 
proportion to all funds provided to the Authority by that member or by the County on behalf of that member during its 
membership. 
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Summarized information of the Authority for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows: 
 
  

Total assets  $         376,665,967. 

Total liabilities  (108,120,816) 

    Total net assets  $         268,545,151. 

    

Total revenue  $         265,212,548. 

Total expenses  (284,296,768) 

    Net decrease in net assets  $         (19,084,220) 

   
 
Complete financial statements may be obtained from the Orange County Fire Authority, 1 Fire Authority Road, Irvine, 
California 92602. 

 
NOTE 10:  DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

 
Plan Description 
 
The City of Laguna Niguel is a participant in the California Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 
Miscellaneous 2% at 55 Risk Pool and, 2% at 60 Risk Pool, a cost-sharing multiple-employer public defined benefit 
pension plan.  PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits 
to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for participating 
public entities within the State of California. Copies of PERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their 
executive office: 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Participants are required to contribute 7% of their annual covered salary.  For full-time employees hired on or before 
October 1, 2011, the City makes the contributions required of full-time City employees on their behalf and for their 
account.  For full-time employees hired after October 1, 2011, the employee pays the entire 7% contribution.  The City 
is required to contribute for fiscal year 2011-2012 at an actuarially determined rate of 10.539% and 7.733% of annual 
covered payroll for the 2% at 55 and 2% at 60 risk pools, respectively. 
 
Required Contribution 
 
For 2011-2012, the City’s annual pension cost of $851,920 for PERS was equal to the City’s required and actual 
contributions.  The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation using the 
entry age normal actuarial cost method.  The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return (net 
of administrative expenses), (b) projected salary increases ranging from 3.55% to 14.45% for miscellaneous 
employees under both  the 2% at 55 Risk Pool and the 2% at 60 Risk Pool depending on age and service, and (c) 2% 
per year cost-of-living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 3.00%.  The actuarial value of 
PERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of 
investments over a three-year period.  PERS unfunded actuarial accrued liability (or surplus) is being amortized as a 
level percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis.  The average remaining amortization period at June 30, 2009, 
was 18 years for the Miscellaneous 2% at 55 Risk Pool for prior and current service unfunded liability.  The 
Miscellaneous 2% at 60 Risk Pool did not exist as of June 30, 2009; therefore, no average amortization period existed 
for prior and current service unfunded liability. 
 
For fiscal year 2011-2012, the City of Laguna Niguel participated in risk pooling.  Risk pooling consists of combining 
assets and liabilities across employers to produce large groups where the impact of a catastrophic demographic event 
is shared among all employers of the same risk pool.  Participation in risk pools is mandatory for all rate plans with 
less than 100 active members.  Mandated participation in risk pools was initially based on the active membership of  
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each rate plan as of June 30, 2003.  The implementation of risk pools was done in a way that minimizes the impact on 
employer contribution rates.  The first year in risk pools, the employer contribution rates are almost identical to what 
the rates would have been outside pools.  Future rates will be based on the experience of each pool.  Pooling will 
reduce the volatility of future employer rates.  Mandated participation will occur on an annual basis. If on any valuation 
date starting with the June 30, 2003, valuation, a rate plan has less than 100 active members, it will be mandated in 
one of the risk pools effective on that valuation date.  

 
 

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS 
 

Fiscal Year  

Annual 
Pension Cost 

(APC)  

Percentage 
of APC 

Contributed  
Net Pension 
Obligation 

       

6/30/10  $   707,115  100%  $        - 

6/30/11  801,771  100%  - 

6/30/12  851,920  100%  - 
                             
 

NOTE 11:  OPERATING LEASES 
 
The City has entered into 9 operating leases for copiers and other equipment.  Lease terms are 60 months with 
expiration dates ranging from March 31, 2013 to November 30, 2017. 

 
The annual lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2012, are as follows: 

 
 

Year Ending 
June 30,  

Minimum 
Rental 

Payments 

   

2013  $   50,796 

2014  24,722 

2015  19,337 

2016  16,879 
 

Total lease obligation expenditures were $99,265 for fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. 
 

NOTE 12:  CONTINGENCIES 
 
The City is involved as a defendant in various legal proceedings.  While it is not feasible to predict or determine the 
outcome in these cases, it is the opinion of the City that the outcome of the majority of these cases will have no 
material adverse effect on the financial position of the City. 
 
The City has received State and Federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review by the grantor 
agencies.  Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under the terms of the grants, it is believed 
that any required reimbursements, if any, will not be material. 
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NOTE 13:  OUTSTANDING COMMITMENTS 
 
Prior to the end of the fiscal year, the City awarded several consulting and capital project contracts.  At June 30, 2012 
the unpaid balances of the significant contracts are as follows: 

 

Contracts  Balances 

   

Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I  $   2,307,601 

Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase II  1,947,811 

  $   4,255,412 
 
   

The City has agreed to share the costs of the Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I with the City of 
Mission Viejo and its Community Development Agency.  The City will make the required contract payments and then 
bill Mission Viejo for their 50% share, net of any project grant funds.  
 
These commitments, including the City’s net share of the Crown Valley Parkway Widening Project – Phase I net of 
Mission Viejo’s contribution and project grant funds, have been recorded as encumbrances at year-end in the General 
Fund.  They are included in fund balance assigned to continuing appropriations. 
 

NOTE 14:  PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 
 
A. Government-Wide Financial Statements 

 
The City recorded prior-period adjustments in the Government-Wide Financial Statements. 
Accordingly, net assets have been restated as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities:   

        To adjust vehicles removed in prior year added back this year  $      38,558. 

        To adjust accumulated depreciation on park equipment  (774,664) 

        To adjust accumulated depreciation on vehicles  (37,687) 

  $  (773,793) 

 
B. Fund Financial Statements 

 
The City recorded the following prior-period adjustment in the Funds Financial Statements.  
Accordingly, net assets have been restated as follows: 
 

Proprietary Fund:   

    Vehicle Replacement Fund:  . 

        To adjust vehicles removed in prior year added back this year  $      38,558. 

        To adjust accumulated depreciation on vehicles  (37,687) 

  $           871. 
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Revenues:
Taxes 29,553,700$   29,691,450$   30,106,150$   414,700$        29,616,877$   
Licenses and permits 1,023,300       1,267,807       1,289,809       22,002            1,062,646       
Intergovernmental -                      56,476            1,301,890       1,245,414       849,566          
Charges for services 1,175,860       1,139,110       1,100,414       (38,696)           1,014,934       
Use of money and property 1,833,200       1,829,600       942,544          (887,056)         1,158,105       
Fines and forfeitures 366,000          422,000          374,666          (47,334)           373,906          
Contributions 6,000              8,100              12,155            4,055              12,070            
Miscellaneous 55,330            1,242,190       157,250          (1,084,940)      319,363          

Total Revenues 34,013,390    35,656,733   35,284,878   (371,855)         34,407,467   

Expenditures:
General government 4,954,590       6,000,949       4,514,765       1,486,184       4,249,263       
Public safety 10,029,354     10,107,525     9,713,168       394,357          9,867,482       
Community development 2,343,641       2,828,884       2,707,274       121,610          2,609,396       
Public works 6,822,829       7,423,636       6,610,866       812,770          6,924,515       
Parks and recreation 3,465,454       3,798,875       3,217,560       581,316          3,117,227       

Total Expenditures 27,615,868    30,159,869   26,763,633   3,396,237       26,767,883   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 6,397,522      5,496,864     8,521,245     3,024,382       7,639,584     

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 31,490            1,414,199       40,517            (1,373,682)      191,089          
Transfers out (7,532,349)      (30,539,693)    (8,938,843)      21,600,850     (23,976,072)    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (7,500,859)     (29,125,494)  (8,898,326)    20,227,167     (23,784,983)  

Net change in fund balances (1,103,337)      (23,628,631)    (377,081)         23,251,549     (16,145,399)    

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 68,645,113     68,645,113     68,645,113     -                  84,790,512     

Fund Balances, End of Year 67,541,776$  45,016,482$  68,268,032$  23,251,549$   68,645,113$  

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 2,679,533$     8,058,955$     3,101,160$     (4,957,795)$    1,911,237$     
Use of money and property 400                 550                 394                 (156)                694                 

Total Revenues 2,679,933      8,059,505     3,101,554     (4,957,951)      1,911,931     

Expenditures:
Community development 46,533            46,533            41,977            4,556              39,050            

Total Expenditures 46,533           46,533          41,977          4,556              39,050          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 2,633,400       8,012,972       3,059,577       (4,962,507)      1,872,881       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in -                      -                      -                      -                      570,000          
Transfers out (2,633,000)      (8,880,047)      (3,255,585)      5,624,462       (1,563,987)      

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,633,000)     (8,880,047)    (3,255,585)    5,624,462       (993,987)       

Net change in fund balances 400                 (867,075)         (196,008)         661,955          878,894          

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (428,679)         (428,679)         (428,679)         -                      (1,307,573)      

Fund Balances, End of Year (428,279)$      (1,295,754)$   (624,687)$      661,955$        (428,679)$      

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MISCELLANEOUS GRANTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay 11,606,440     40,692,156     12,668,248     28,023,908     26,922,744     

Total Expenditures 11,606,440    40,692,156   12,668,248   28,023,908     26,922,744   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (11,606,440)    (40,692,156)    (12,668,248)    28,023,908     (26,922,744)    

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 11,606,440     41,390,950     12,668,248     (28,722,702)    26,922,744     

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 11,606,440    41,390,950   12,668,248   (28,722,702)    26,922,744   

Net change in fund balances -                      698,794          -                      (698,794)         -                      

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Fund Balances, End of Year -$                   698,794$       -$                   (698,794)$       -$                   

Budgeted Amounts

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CITY CAPITAL PROJECTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
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CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2012 

  

 

NOTE 1:   BUDGET POLICY AND CONTROL 
 
Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America and are used as a management control device.  Annual budgets 
are adopted for the General Fund, all Special Revenue Funds, and the Capital Projects Fund.  
The City Manager and Director of Finance prepare and submit a proposed budget to the City 
Council.  The City Council conducts a noticed public hearing to invite public input before the 
City Council conducts its detailed review of the proposed budget at a special meeting where 
additional public input is invited.  After reviewing the proposed budget and making such 
revisions that it deems advisable, the City Council approves each year’s budget by resolution 
at the first meeting of the new fiscal year.  The City Council has the legal authority to amend 
the budget at any time during the fiscal year.  
 
The City Manager is authorized to adjust appropriations between functions within each 
program (i.e. general government, public safety, public works, community development, parks 
and recreation and capital outlay), provided that the total appropriations for each program 
does not exceed the amounts approved in the budget or any amending resolutions. 
Adjustments to appropriations between programs and funds require City Council approval. 
Transfers of cash or unappropriated fund balance from one fund to another can only be made 
with City Council’s approval.  Unexpended appropriations for authorized, but uncompleted, 
projects in the Capital Improvement Program budget and some unexpended operating 
appropriations can be carried forward to the next succeeding budget year upon 
recommendation of the City Manager and approval of the City Council.  All other 
appropriations lapse at end of year.  Total additional appropriations for fiscal year ended June 
30, 2012 were $31,636,773.  
 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for 
the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable 
appropriation, is employed in the governmental funds.  Significant encumbrances at year-end 
are disclosed as part of outstanding commitments.  Encumbrances do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities. 

52



CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2012 

 

  

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
 
 
Gas Tax Fund - Accounts for revenues received and expenditures made for general street maintenance.  
Financing is provided by the City’s share of state gasoline taxes collected under the Street and Highway 
Code, Sections 2103, 2105, 2106, 2107 and 2107.5. 
 
 
Measure “M” Fund - Accounts for revenues received and expenditures made for street improvement and 
maintenance.  Financing is provided by City’s allocation of County Measure M funds. 
 
 
Prop 1B Fund - Accounts for revenues received and expenditures made for street improvements.  
Financing is provided by City’s allocation of State Proposition 1B funds. 
 
 
Air Quality Improvement Fund - Accounts for revenues received under AB2766 and expenditures made 
for air quality improvements.  AB2766 was enacted to authorize air pollution control districts to impose 
fees on motor vehicles.  The California Department of Motor Vehicles collects the fees by assessing an 
amount on each registered vehicle in the South Coast District.  This fee is distributed by the South Coast 
Air Quality Management District to local governments on a prorated basis based on population in the 
area. 
 
 
Law Enforcement Fund - Accounts for various law enforcement revenues received and expenditures 
made including: the addition of one motorcycle patrol officer and other certain law enforcement and crime 
prevention expenditures in the Police Services Department. Financing is provided by the State of 
California’s Citizens Options for Public Safety (COPS) program and the Regional Narcotics Suppression 
Program. 
 
 
Community Development Block Grant Fund - Accounts for revenues received and expenditures made 
for Community Development Block Grant eligible grants and capital projects.  Financing is provided by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. 
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Air Quality

Gas Tax Measure "M" Prop 1B Improvement

Assets:

Cash and investments 116,766$            644,711$            1,775$                280,099$            

Due from other governments 189,986              161,585              -                          19,578                

Total Assets 306,752$            806,296$            1,775$                299,677$            

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 258,217$            -$                        -$                        4,264$                

Deferred revenues -                          -                          -                          -                          

Due to other funds -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Liabilities 258,217              -                          -                          4,264                  

Fund Balances:

Restricted 48,535                806,296              1,775                  295,413              

Unassigned -                          -                          -                          -                          

Total Fund Balances 48,535                806,296              1,775                  295,413              

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 306,752$            806,296$            1,775$                299,677$            

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds
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Community

Law Development

Enforcement Block Grant 2012 2011

Assets:

Cash and investments 286,863$            -$                        1,330,214$         598,511$            

Due from other governments 712                     10,226                382,087              707,093              

Total Assets 287,575$            10,226$              1,712,301$         1,305,604$         

Liabilities and Fund Balances:

Liabilities:

Accounts payable 8,333$                7,561$                278,375$            278,402$            

Deferred revenues -                          -                          -                          681                     

Due to other funds -                          2,650                  2,650                  463,708              

Total Liabilities 8,333                  10,211                281,025              742,791              

Fund Balances:

Restricted 279,242              15                       1,431,276           563,494              

Unassigned -                          -                          -                          (681)                    

Total Fund Balances 279,242              15                       1,431,276           562,813              

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 287,575$            10,226$              1,712,301$         1,305,604$         

Total Governmental Funds

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2012

Special Revenue Funds
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Air Quality

Gas Tax Measure "M" Prop 1B Improvement

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 1,885,364$         960,416$            -$                        79,314$              

Use of money and property 805                     9,963                  22                       3,662                  

Total Revenues 1,886,169           970,379              22                       82,976                

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety -                          -                          -                          -                          

Community development -                          -                          -                          -                          

Public works 1,527,885           -                          -                          43,171                

Total Expenditures 1,527,885           -                          -                          43,171                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 358,284              970,379              22                       39,805                

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers out (309,749)             (164,083)             -                          (40,505)               

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (309,749)             (164,083)             -                          (40,505)               

Net change in fund balances 48,535                806,296              22                       (700)                    

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year -                          -                          1,753                  296,113              

Fund Balances, End of Year 48,535$              806,296$            1,775$                295,413$            

Special Revenue Funds

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
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Community

Law Development

Enforcement Block Grant 2012 2011

Revenues:

Intergovernmental 109,799$            78,092$              3,112,985$         3,333,447$         

Use of money and property 3,811                  -                          18,263                10,716                

Total Revenues 113,610              78,092                3,131,248           3,344,163           

Expenditures:

Current:

Public safety 99,996                -                          99,996                105,995              

Community development -                          77,396                77,396                90,947                

Public works -                          -                          1,571,056           1,068,793           

Total Expenditures 99,996                77,396                1,748,448           1,265,735           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures 13,614                696                     1,382,800           2,078,428           

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers out -                          -                          (514,337)             (2,143,774)          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                          -                          (514,337)             (2,143,774)          

Net change in fund balances 13,614                696                     868,463              (65,346)               

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 265,628              (681)                    562,813              628,159              

Fund Balances, End of Year 279,242$            15$                     1,431,276$         562,813$            

Total Governmental Funds

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

Special Revenue Funds
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 1,817,400$     1,746,400$     1,885,364$     138,964$        1,680,517$     
Use of money and property -                      -                      805                 805                 -                      

Total Revenues 1,817,400     1,746,400     1,886,169     139,769          1,680,517     

Expenditures:
Public works 1,544,000       1,527,885       1,527,885       -                      1,039,865       

Total Expenditures 1,544,000     1,527,885     1,527,885     -                      1,039,865     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 273,400          218,515          358,284          139,769          640,652          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in -                      54,885            -                      (54,885)           -                      
Transfers out (273,400)         (309,749)         (309,749)         -                      (640,652)         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (273,400)       (254,864)       (309,749)       (54,885)           (640,652)       

Net change in fund balances -                      (36,349)           48,535            84,884            -                      

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Fund Balances, End of Year -$                   (36,349)$        48,535$         84,884$          -$                   

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GAS TAX
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 896,000$        1,413,498$     960,416$        (453,082)$       692,154$        
Use of money and property -                      4,300              9,963              5,663              1,057              

Total Revenues 896,000        1,417,798     970,379        (447,419)         693,211        

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 896,000          1,417,798       970,379          (447,419)         693,211          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out (896,000)         (1,480,287)      (164,083)         1,316,204       (693,211)         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (896,000)       (1,480,287)    (164,083)       1,316,204       (693,211)       

Net change in fund balances -                      (62,489)           806,296          868,785          -                      

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Fund Balances, End of Year -$                   (62,489)$        806,296$       868,785$        -$                   

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MEASURE M
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Revenues:
Use of money and property -$                    50$                 22$                 (28)$                (794)$              

Total Revenues -                    50                 22                 (28)                  (794)              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                      50                   22                   (28)                  (794)                

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out -                      -                      -                      -                      (63,246)           

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) -                    -                    -                    -                      (63,246)         

Net change in fund balances -                      50                   22                   (28)                  (64,040)           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,753              1,753              1,753              -                      65,793            

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,753$           1,803$           1,775$           (28)$                1,753$           

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PROP 1B
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 75,000$          75,000$          79,314$          4,314$            74,332$          
Use of money and property 8,000              6,000              3,662              (2,338)             5,614              

Total Revenues 83,000          81,000          82,976          1,976              79,946          

Expenditures:
Public works 20,000            43,171            43,171            -                      28,928            

Total Expenditures 20,000          43,171          43,171          -                      28,928          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 63,000            37,829            39,805            1,976              51,018            

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in -                      23,171            -                      (23,171)           -                      
Transfers out (85,390)           (85,390)           (40,505)           44,885            (50,503)           

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (85,390)         (62,219)         (40,505)         21,714            (50,503)         

Net change in fund balances (22,390)           (24,390)           (700)                23,690            515                 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 296,113          296,113          296,113          -                      295,598          

Fund Balances, End of Year 273,723$       271,723$       295,413$       23,690$          296,113$       

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
AIR QUALITY IMPROVEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 100,000$        100,000$        109,799$        9,799$            100,016$        
Use of money and property -                      5,900              3,811              (2,089)             4,839              

Total Revenues 100,000        105,900        113,610        7,710              104,855        

Expenditures:
Public safety 100,000          100,000          99,996            4                     105,995          

Total Expenditures 100,000        100,000        99,996          4                     105,995        

Net change in fund balances -                      5,900              13,614            7,706              (1,140)             

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 265,628          265,628          265,628          -                      266,768          

Fund Balances, End of Year 265,628$       271,528$       279,242$       7,706$            265,628$       

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LAW ENFORCEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance with
Final Budget

Actual Positive Prior Year
Original Final Amounts (Negative) Actuals

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 302,749$        302,749$        78,092$          (224,657)$       630,341$        

Total Revenues 302,749        302,749        78,092          (224,657)         630,341        

Expenditures:
Community development 84,958            84,958            77,396            7,562              90,947            

Total Expenditures 84,958          84,958          77,396          7,562              90,947          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 217,791          217,791          696                 (232,219)         539,394          

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out (217,791)         (267,791)         -                      267,791          (540,075)         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (217,791)       (267,791)       -                    267,791          (540,075)       

Net change in fund balances -                      (50,000)           696                 35,572            (681)                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (681)                (681)                (681)                -                      -                      

Fund Balances, End of Year (681)$             (50,681)$        15$                35,572$          (681)$             

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
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CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL 
 
STATISTICAL SECTION OVERVIEW 

 

 

 
 
This part of the City’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context 
for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required 
supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health. 
 
Contents            Page 
 
 
Financial Trends 67 
 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
City’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 
 
 
Revenue Capacity 72 
 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City’s most 
significant local revenue source, property taxes. 
 
 
Debt Capacity 77 
 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
City’s current levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in 
the future. 
 
 
Demographic and Economic Information 80 
 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City’s financial activities take place. 
 
 
Operating Information 82 
 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the information in the City’s financial report relates to the services the City 
provides and the activities it performs. 

65



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(This page intentionally left blank) 

66



20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
iti

es
:

In
ve

st
ed

 in
 c

ap
ita

l a
ss

et
s

28
4,

48
6,

40
9

$ 
28

6,
05

3,
07

8
$ 

29
3,

59
2,

78
4

$ 
30

5,
34

8,
57

8
$ 

50
2,

83
6,

17
5

$ 
50

6,
82

4,
05

0
$ 

52
3,

61
7,

40
8

$ 
52

8,
96

3,
58

7
$ 

54
5,

93
2,

67
0

$ 
55

0,
19

8,
84

2
$ 

R
es

tr
ic

te
d

P
ub

lic
 s

af
et

y
36

7,
88

8
   

   
   

 
24

6,
12

9
   

   
   

 
24

8,
38

8
   

   
   

 
24

8,
24

6
   

   
   

 
29

2,
80

2
   

   
   

 
25

4,
85

1
   

   
   

 
24

2,
31

5
   

   
   

 
26

6,
76

8
   

   
   

 
26

5,
62

8
   

   
   

 
27

9,
24

2
   

   
   

 

P
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

1,
46

5,
72

9
   

   
 

1,
94

0,
81

8
   

   
 

1,
28

8,
28

9
   

   
 

1,
51

0,
29

8
   

   
 

69
7,

65
0

   
   

   
 

55
6,

51
5

   
   

   
 

83
2,

60
1

   
   

   
 

37
4,

80
1

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

S
tr

ee
ts

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

1,
75

3
   

   
   

   
  

85
6,

60
6

   
   

   
 

1

C
om

m
un

ity
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

10
,2

54
   

   
   

  
 

16
,1

14
   

   
   

  
 

7,
16

5
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
8,

80
2

   
   

   
   

  
11

,9
10

   
   

   
  

 
13

,2
01

   
   

   
  

 
16

,3
19

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

15
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
19

2,
59

3
   

   
   

 
19

6,
44

4
   

   
   

 
20

7,
01

0
   

   
   

 
49

,9
02

   
   

   
  

 
50

,3
51

   
   

   
  

 
50

,5
74

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 

A
ir 

qu
al

ity
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
29

6,
11

3
   

   
   

 
29

5,
41

3
   

   
   

 

T
ot

al
 r

es
tr

ic
te

d
1,

84
3,

87
1

   
   

 
2,

20
3,

06
1

   
   

 
1,

73
6,

43
5

   
   

 
1,

95
4,

98
8

   
   

 
1,

20
6,

26
4

   
   

 
87

3,
17

8
   

   
   

 
1,

13
8,

46
8

   
   

 
70

8,
46

2
   

   
   

 
56

3,
49

4
   

   
   

 
1,

43
1,

27
6

   
   

 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d
55

,6
61

,0
39

   
  

63
,0

20
,7

08
   

  
68

,1
45

,4
96

   
  

79
,0

71
,0

65
   

  
84

,3
66

,2
96

   
  

92
,0

12
,7

56
   

  
86

,2
38

,9
08

   
  

85
,3

20
,0

21
   

  
68

,8
02

,8
06

   
  

68
,3

47
,1

26
   

  

T
ot

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 n
et

 a
ss

et
s

34
1,

99
1,

31
9

$ 
35

1,
27

6,
84

7
$ 

36
3,

47
4,

71
5

$ 
38

6,
37

4,
63

1
$ 

58
8,

40
8,

73
5

$ 
59

9,
70

9,
98

4
$ 

61
0,

99
4,

78
4

$ 
61

4,
99

2,
07

0
$ 

61
5,

29
8,

97
0

$ 
61

9,
97

7,
24

4
$ 

1  P
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

 w
as

 r
ec

la
ss

ifi
ed

 a
s 

S
tr

ee
ts

 in
 2

01
1.

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
 B

Y
 C

O
M

P
O

N
E

N
T

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S

(A
C

C
R

U
A

L
 B

A
S

IS
 O

F
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

)

T
he

 C
ity

 d
oe

s 
no

t h
av

e 
an

y 
B

us
in

es
s-

T
yp

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

T
he

re
fo

re
, a

ll 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 c
om

pr
is

e 
th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t o
f t

he
 C

ity
 o

f L
ag

un
a 

N
ig

ue
l.

67



20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

E
xp

en
se

s:

G
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

3,
37

1,
25

1
$ 

 
3,

04
7,

36
3

$ 
 

3,
39

9,
53

1
$ 

  
4,

15
4,

47
3

$ 
  

3,
64

7,
28

1
$ 

  
4,

02
5,

04
7

$ 
  

3,
69

1,
20

5
$ 

  
3,

76
4,

85
9

$ 
 

4,
03

3,
76

5
$ 

 
4,

95
5,

90
9

$ 
 

1

P
ub

lic
 s

af
et

y
7,

66
8,

98
9

   
 

7,
33

1,
14

2
   

 
7,

57
4,

57
7

   
  

8,
07

1,
13

2
   

  
8,

56
9,

98
0

   
  

9,
66

6,
89

6
   

  
9,

64
9,

13
1

   
  

9,
91

8,
88

4
   

 
10

,0
06

,3
18

  
9,

86
7,

71
8

   
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

1,
81

3,
16

9
   

 
1,

98
7,

75
2

   
 

2,
17

9,
89

3
   

  
2,

25
9,

29
3

   
  

2,
65

1,
79

5
   

  
3,

06
8,

14
9

   
  

2,
80

8,
62

8
   

  
2,

81
0,

50
6

   
 

2,
76

2,
99

5
   

 
3,

97
0,

61
0

   
 

P
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

7,
04

4,
69

5
   

 
7,

52
2,

80
2

   
 

7,
66

2,
56

0
   

  
9,

30
9,

63
8

   
  

13
,4

70
,1

42
  

 
14

,0
39

,9
13

  
 

16
,4

00
,7

13
  

 
15

,1
42

,2
52

  
17

,1
38

,1
84

  
13

,4
34

,7
92

  
2

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
3,

60
7,

70
0

   
 

3,
04

8,
84

0
   

 
3,

17
6,

30
0

   
  

3,
83

0,
90

7
   

  
4,

54
1,

88
6

   
  

4,
54

6,
45

7
   

  
3,

23
9,

74
6

   
  

4,
18

1,
75

7
   

 
3,

84
1,

94
9

   
 

4,
08

8,
34

8
   

 

T
ot

al
 e

xp
en

se
s

23
,5

05
,8

04
  

22
,9

37
,8

99
  

23
,9

92
,8

61
  

 
27

,6
25

,4
43

  
 

32
,8

81
,0

84
  

 
35

,3
46

,4
62

  
 

35
,7

89
,4

23
  

 
35

,8
18

,2
58

  
37

,7
83

,2
11

  
36

,3
17

,3
77

  

P
ro

g
ra

m
 R

ev
en

u
es

:

C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

:

G
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

78
,7

20
   

   
  

 
64

,7
79

   
   

   
 

92
,9

13
   

   
   

 
4,

69
2

   
   

   
  

 
4,

69
2

   
   

   
  

 
4,

69
2

   
   

   
  

 
4,

69
2

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
68

6
   

   
   

  

P
ub

lic
 s

af
et

y
34

3,
33

5
   

   
 

33
3,

61
4

   
   

 
40

4,
83

9
   

   
  

39
8,

16
7

   
   

  
41

1,
65

4
   

   
  

46
9,

45
5

   
   

  
36

7,
02

9
   

   
  

43
9,

37
8

   
   

 
37

5,
49

9
   

   
 

40
4,

19
7

   
   

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

1,
04

6,
93

0
   

 
1,

41
3,

01
0

   
 

1,
12

6,
82

5
   

  
1,

44
8,

80
6

   
  

1,
51

7,
47

6
   

  
1,

49
9,

45
6

   
  

1,
02

2,
86

1
   

  
1,

03
7,

65
7

   
 

1,
15

3,
43

9
   

 
1,

14
3,

06
3

   
 

P
ub

lic
 w

or
ks

18
3,

01
3

   
   

 
16

1,
31

1
   

   
 

11
4,

32
7

   
   

  
21

6,
11

6
   

   
  

30
1,

49
7

   
   

  
23

4,
52

5
   

   
  

14
9,

58
4

   
   

  
25

1,
72

8
   

   
 

17
,9

50
   

   
  

 
21

8,
09

1
   

   
 

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
70

1,
98

5
   

   
 

77
2,

47
0

   
   

 
76

7,
79

9
   

   
  

93
0,

13
2

   
   

  
1,

13
6,

16
5

   
  

1,
03

9,
99

2
   

  
1,

02
7,

06
4

   
  

95
9,

96
6

   
   

 
1,

01
4,

93
4

   
 

1,
10

7,
50

2
   

 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
gr

an
ts

 a
nd

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
2,

86
9,

26
9

   
 

2,
39

4,
07

4
   

 
3,

28
0,

85
0

   
  

2,
83

0,
22

2
   

  
3,

70
9,

25
9

   
  

4,
80

1,
99

6
   

  
3,

19
0,

54
6

   
  

2,
85

3,
27

2
   

 
3,

26
7,

50
3

   
 

3,
37

6,
50

9
   

 

C
ap

ita
l g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
74

1,
39

9
   

   
 

76
3,

71
7

   
   

 
1,

09
6,

85
2

   
  

1,
46

6,
16

8
   

  
90

4,
77

3
   

   
  

1,
19

2,
58

7
   

  
5,

83
4,

70
2

   
  

2,
78

9,
72

3
   

 
1,

29
7,

94
2

   
 

3,
84

8,
00

7
   

 

T
ot

al
 p

ro
gr

am
 r

ev
en

ue
s

5,
88

5,
93

1
   

 
5,

91
6,

91
6

   
 

6,
85

6,
27

1
   

  
7,

38
2,

52
4

   
  

7,
98

5,
51

6
   

  
9,

24
2,

70
3

   
  

11
,5

96
,4

78
  

 
8,

33
6,

41
6

   
 

7,
12

7,
26

7
   

 
10

,1
01

,0
55

  

N
et

 (
ex

pe
ns

es
)/

re
ve

nu
es

(1
7,

61
9,

87
3)

 
(1

7,
02

0,
98

3)
 

(1
7,

13
6,

59
0)

  
(2

0,
24

2,
91

9)
  

(2
4,

89
5,

56
8)

  
(2

6,
10

3,
75

9)
  

(2
4,

19
2,

94
5)

  
(2

7,
48

1,
84

2)
 

(3
0,

65
5,

94
4)

 
(2

6,
21

6,
32

2)
 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 IN

 N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
S

(A
C

C
R

U
A

L
 B

A
S

IS
 O

F
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

)

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

68



20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 IN

 N
E

T
 A

S
S

E
T

S
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
S

(A
C

C
R

U
A

L
 B

A
S

IS
 O

F
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

)

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

es
:

T
ax

es
:

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xe
s

8,
36

2,
85

7
   

 
8,

94
9,

81
3

   
 

9,
73

5,
75

1
   

  
14

,9
07

,7
25

  
 

16
,3

33
,3

25
  

 
17

,3
34

,9
96

  
 

17
,4

53
,8

28
  

 
16

,9
17

,2
58

  
16

,8
12

,6
73

  
16

,8
20

,2
73

  
3

S
al

es
 ta

xe
s

9,
49

5,
21

6
   

 
11

,0
61

,0
21

  
11

,1
24

,7
06

  
 

11
,3

60
,6

19
  

 
11

,0
18

,0
97

  
 

11
,2

22
,6

28
  

 
10

,2
79

,4
76

  
 

9,
40

6,
99

4
   

 
9,

67
3,

44
5

   
 

11
,0

44
,4

40
  

F
ra

nc
hi

se
 fe

es
1,

59
9,

86
3

   
 

1,
74

8,
80

1
   

 
1,

85
6,

58
5

   
  

2,
03

7,
71

3
   

  
2,

25
8,

16
6

   
  

2,
26

6,
24

0
   

  
2,

35
0,

14
5

   
  

2,
31

4,
81

3
   

 
2,

27
7,

12
5

   
 

2,
32

0,
35

1
   

 

O
th

er
 ta

xe
s

74
5,

15
9

   
   

 
97

7,
90

4
   

   
 

92
5,

44
8

   
   

  
79

4,
10

2
   

   
  

51
4,

88
3

   
   

  
36

9,
35

5
   

   
  

30
6,

99
8

   
   

  
40

2,
13

1
   

   
 

38
7,

80
0

   
   

 
40

4,
65

9
   

   
 

M
ot

or
 v

eh
ic

le
 li

ce
ns

e 
fe

e
3,

67
9,

27
0

   
 

2,
98

8,
10

3
   

 
3,

57
9,

04
5

   
  

1,
56

0,
61

3
   

  
35

7,
48

4
   

   
  

29
5,

28
3

   
   

  
22

7,
50

5
   

   
  

19
7,

44
4

   
   

 
30

8,
56

0
   

   
 

33
,4

76
   

   
  

 
3

U
se

 o
f m

on
ey

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y
2,

92
4,

86
7

   
 

90
,1

25
   

   
  

 
1,

78
2,

01
4

   
  

1,
39

2,
06

5
   

  
4,

33
7,

44
9

   
  

5,
87

3,
31

3
   

  
4,

39
1,

41
3

   
  

1,
97

6,
06

3
   

 
1,

18
1,

87
8

   
 

95
3,

08
1

   
   

 
4,

5

O
th

er
 g

en
er

al
 r

ev
en

ue
81

2,
56

1
   

   
 

49
0,

74
4

   
   

 
33

0,
90

9
   

   
  

1,
51

7,
68

1
   

  
37

8,
18

6
   

   
  

43
,1

93
   

   
   

 
46

8,
38

0
   

   
  

26
4,

42
5

   
   

 
32

1,
36

3
   

   
 

92
,1

06
   

   
  

 
6

T
ot

al
 g

en
er

al
 r

ev
en

ue
27

,6
19

,7
93

  
26

,3
06

,5
11

  
29

,3
34

,4
58

  
 

33
,5

70
,5

18
  

 
35

,1
97

,5
90

  
 

37
,4

05
,0

08
  

 
35

,4
77

,7
45

  
 

31
,4

79
,1

28
  

30
,9

62
,8

44
  

31
,6

68
,3

86
  

C
ha

ng
es

 in
 n

et
 a

ss
et

s
9,

99
9,

92
0

$ 
 

9,
28

5,
52

8
$ 

 
12

,1
97

,8
68

$ 
13

,3
27

,5
99

$ 
10

,3
02

,0
22

$ 
11

,3
01

,2
49

$ 
11

,2
84

,8
00

$ 
3,

99
7,

28
6

$ 
 

30
6,

90
0

$ 
   

 
5,

45
2,

06
4

$ 
 

T
he

 C
ity

 d
oe

s 
no

t h
av

e 
an

y 
B

us
in

es
s-

T
yp

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
.  

T
he

re
fo

re
, a

ll 
go

ve
rn

em
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 c
om

pr
is

e 
th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t o
f t

he
 C

ity
 o

f L
ag

un
a 

N
ig

ue
l.

T
he

 C
ity

 b
eg

an
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

ne
t a

ss
et

s 
up

on
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 G

A
S

B
 3

4 
fo

r 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r 

en
de

d 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

00
3.

  N
et

 a
ss

et
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

io
r 

to
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 G

A
S

B
 3

4 
is

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e.

1  C
ity

 p
ai

d 
do

w
n 

its
 C

al
P

E
R

S
 s

id
e 

fu
nd

 (
un

fu
nd

ed
 li

ab
ili

ty
) 

in
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f $

56
3,

61
6 

in
 2

00
6,

 c
au

si
ng

 g
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t e

xp
en

se
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 b

y 
22

%
 in

 2
00

6.

2  C
ity

 r
ep

or
te

d 
al

l i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

as
se

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
fir

st
 ti

m
e 

in
 2

00
7.

  I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

de
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 p

ub
lic

 w
or

ks
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

$3
.3

 m
ill

io
n 

in
 2

00
7 

as
 a

 r
es

ul
t o

f t
hi

s 
ch

an
ge

.

3  P
ro

pe
rt

y 
T

ax
 in

 L
ie

u 
of

 V
LF

 w
as

 r
ec

la
ss

ifi
ed

 fr
om

 V
LF

 to
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

T
ax

es
 in

 2
00

6.

4  In
cl

ud
es

 u
nr

ea
liz

ed
 g

ai
ns

 a
nd

 lo
ss

es
 d

ue
 to

 th
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 a
t m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 G
A

S
B

 3
1.

5  U
se

 o
f m

on
ey

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
w

as
 c

al
le

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

t i
nc

om
e 

in
 y

ea
rs

 p
rio

r 
to

 2
01

1.

6  T
he

 C
ity

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
a 

on
e-

tim
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

in
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f $

1.
3 

m
ill

io
n 

up
on

 th
e 

re
ne

w
al

 o
f i

ts
 c

ab
le

 fr
an

ch
is

e 
ag

re
em

en
t i

n 
2

00
6.

69



20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

G
en

er
al

 fu
nd

R
es

er
ve

d
1,

51
8,

10
3

$ 
   

   
80

1,
00

2
$ 

   
   

   
65

7,
68

8
$ 

   
   

   
1,

61
4,

06
5

$ 
   

   
2,

76
5,

27
7

$ 
   

   
9,

22
9,

51
0

$ 
   

   
2,

82
5,

27
9

$ 
   

   
15

,1
21

,6
04

$ 
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

U
nr

es
er

ve
d

35
,7

60
,3

61
   

   
 

42
,5

32
,5

38
   

   
 

59
,7

38
,0

25
   

   
 

69
,5

48
,4

86
   

   
 

73
,2

31
,0

17
   

   
 

74
,7

72
,7

58
   

   
 

75
,9

05
,9

13
   

   
 

62
,0

86
,0

55
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

N
on

sp
en

da
bl

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
37

6,
90

0
   

   
   

   
36

9,
63

1
   

   
   

   
2

C
om

m
itt

ed
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

,0
03

,7
66

   
   

 
27

,6
16

,2
66

   
   

 
2

A
ss

ig
ne

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

,8
80

,5
08

   
   

 
26

,9
00

,3
14

   
   

 
2

U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
,3

83
,9

39
   

   
 

13
,3

81
,8

21
   

   
 

2

T
ot

al
 g

en
er

al
 fu

nd
37

,2
78

,4
64

$ 
   

 
43

,3
33

,5
40

$ 
   

 
60

,3
95

,7
13

$ 
   

 
1

71
,1

62
,5

51
$ 

   
 

75
,9

96
,2

94
$ 

   
 

84
,0

02
,2

68
$ 

   
 

78
,7

31
,1

92
$ 

   
 

77
,2

07
,6

59
$ 

   
 

68
,6

45
,1

13
$ 

   
 

68
,2

68
,0

32
$ 

   
 

3

A
ll 

ot
he

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l f

un
ds

R
es

er
ve

d
33

1,
31

4
$ 

   
   

   
71

5,
70

3
$ 

   
   

   
14

7,
06

6
$ 

   
   

   
10

,4
30

$ 
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
23

5,
54

4
$ 

   
   

1,
16

9,
15

5
$ 

   
   

52
8,

98
5

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

U
nr

es
er

ve
d,

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

:

S
pe

ci
al

 r
ev

en
ue

 fu
nd

s
19

,2
36

,0
20

   
   

 
20

,3
08

,2
34

   
   

 
7,

03
3,

71
9

   
   

   
6,

97
6,

60
4

   
   

   
7,

59
1,

28
1

   
   

   
2,

53
1,

02
5

   
   

   
2,

73
3,

67
7

   
   

   
6,

37
4,

45
4

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

C
ap

ita
l p

ro
je

ct
s 

fu
nd

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

,8
66

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
es

tr
ic

te
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

56
3,

49
4

   
   

   
   

1,
43

1,
27

6
   

   
   

2

U
na

ss
ig

ne
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(4
29

,3
60

)
   

   
   

  
(6

24
,6

87
)

   
   

   
  

2

T
ot

al
 a

ll 
ot

he
r 

go
ve

rn
m

en
ta

l f
un

ds
19

,5
67

,3
34

$ 
   

 
21

,0
23

,9
37

$ 
   

 
7,

19
4,

65
1

$ 
   

   
1

6,
98

7,
03

4
$ 

   
   

7,
59

1,
28

1
$ 

   
   

7,
76

6,
56

9
$ 

   
   

3,
90

2,
83

2
$ 

   
   

6,
90

3,
43

9
$ 

   
   

13
4,

13
4

$ 
   

   
   

80
6,

58
9

$ 
   

   
   

3

2
 T

he
 C

ity
 b

eg
an

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
s 

of
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l f

un
ds

 u
nd

er
 th

es
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
up

on
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 G

A
S

B
 5

4 
fo

r 
fis

ca
l y

ea
r 

en
de

d 
Ju

ne
 3

0,
 2

01
1.

3
 T

he
 S

tr
ee

ts
 a

nd
 R

oa
ds

 F
un

d 
an

d 
S

en
io

r 
C

iti
ze

n 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

F
un

d,
 p

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
cl

as
sf

iie
d 

as
 s

pe
ci

al
 r

ev
en

ue
 fu

nd
s,

 w
er

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d,
 p

er
 G

A
S

B
 5

4,
 in

 2
01

1.

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 O
F

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 F
U

N
D

S
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
S

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

(M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 A
C

C
R

U
A

L
 B

A
S

IS
 O

F
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

)

1
 T

he
 L

ag
un

a 
N

ig
ue

l C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

D
is

tr
ic

t (
LN

C
S

D
) 

w
as

 a
 s

ub
si

di
ar

y 
di

st
ric

t o
f t

he
 C

ity
 a

nd
 w

as
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 a

 s
pe

ci
al

 r
ev

e
nu

e 
fu

nd
 fr

om
 1

98
9 

th
ro

ug
h 

20
04

.  
O

n 
M

ay
 1

6,
 2

00
5,

 th
e 

LN
C

S
D

 w
as

 le
ga

lly
 d

is
so

lv
ed

 a
nd

 o
n 

Ju
ne

 
30

, 2
00

5,
 th

e 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

of
 th

e 
LN

C
S

D
 w

er
e 

tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

to
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

in
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f $

12
,0

11
,5

81
.

70



20
03

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

R
ev

en
u

es
:

T
ax

es
18

,4
90

,7
72

$ 
20

,8
69

,1
76

$ 
24

,3
71

,2
76

$ 
26

,7
12

,1
24

$ 
27

,9
91

,9
50

$ 
28

,8
03

,7
31

$ 
28

,3
79

,5
87

$ 
26

,4
75

,4
88

$ 
29

,6
16

,8
77

$ 
  

30
,1

06
,1

50
$ 

Li
ce

ns
es

 a
nd

 p
er

m
its

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
06

2,
64

6
   

   
 

1,
28

9,
80

9
   

  
2

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
6,

85
2,

13
6

   
  

5,
96

5,
40

5
   

  
4,

01
5,

56
6

   
  

5,
34

2,
16

7
   

  
5,

53
6,

49
8

   
  

6,
66

1,
79

4
   

  
5,

09
0,

65
4

   
  

8,
70

3,
01

5
   

  
6,

09
4,

25
0

   
   

 
7,

51
6,

03
5

   
  

C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

1,
93

1,
92

8
   

  
2,

34
6,

79
1

   
  

2,
00

8,
95

2
   

  
2,

59
5,

05
3

   
  

2,
85

4,
76

3
   

  
2,

71
1,

82
4

   
  

2,
13

4,
06

1
   

  
2,

18
6,

18
6

   
  

1,
01

4,
93

4
   

   
 

1,
10

0,
41

4
   

  

F
ra

nc
hi

se
 fe

es
1,

59
9,

86
3

   
  

1,
74

8,
80

1
   

  
1,

85
6,

58
5

   
  

2,
03

7,
71

3
   

  
2,

25
8,

16
6

   
  

2,
26

6,
24

0
   

  
2,

35
0,

14
5

   
  

2,
31

4,
81

3
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1

U
se

 o
f m

on
ey

 a
nd

 p
ro

pe
rt

y
3,

00
9,

10
2

   
  

98
,9

47
   

   
   

 
1,

80
6,

43
0

   
  

1,
40

3,
61

5
   

  
4,

40
5,

00
1

   
  

5,
94

6,
10

4
   

  
4,

45
6,

25
5

   
  

2,
06

8,
79

5
   

  
1,

16
9,

51
5

   
   

 
96

1,
20

1
   

   
  

F
in

es
 a

nd
 fo

rf
ei

tu
re

s
34

3,
33

5
   

   
  

33
3,

61
4

   
   

  
40

4,
83

9
   

   
  

39
8,

16
8

   
   

  
37

3,
59

4
   

   
  

43
5,

70
8

   
   

  
34

4,
81

7
   

   
  

39
2,

87
3

   
   

  
37

3,
90

6
   

   
   

 
37

4,
66

6
   

   
  

D
ev

el
op

er
 fe

es
72

,3
16

   
   

   
 

50
,5

05
   

   
   

 
11

8,
81

3
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
4,

77
9

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,0

70
   

   
   

   
12

,1
55

   
   

   
 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
87

4,
35

7
   

   
  

59
5,

22
5

   
   

  
38

2,
78

6
   

   
  

1,
67

0,
58

3
   

  
54

5,
40

0
   

   
  

32
4,

69
9

   
   

  
41

3,
57

5
   

   
  

50
4,

20
5

   
   

  
31

9,
36

3
   

   
   

 
15

7,
25

0
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 r

ev
en

ue
s

33
,1

73
,8

09
   

32
,0

08
,4

64
   

34
,9

65
,2

47
   

40
,1

59
,4

23
   

43
,9

65
,3

72
   

47
,1

50
,1

00
   

43
,3

53
,8

73
   

42
,6

45
,3

75
   

39
,6

63
,5

61
   

  
41

,5
17

,6
80

   

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s:

C
ur

re
nt

:
G

en
er

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t
3,

39
7,

44
3

   
  

3,
09

9,
07

8
   

  
3,

38
0,

93
9

   
  

3,
92

5,
96

3
   

  
3,

63
9,

17
2

   
  

3,
98

1,
07

9
   

  
3,

65
4,

39
7

   
  

3,
73

3,
89

4
   

  
4,

24
9,

26
3

   
   

 
4,

51
4,

76
5

   
  

P
ub

lic
 s

af
et

y
6,

97
8,

96
6

   
  

7,
29

4,
81

8
   

  
7,

57
9,

84
8

   
  

8,
02

5,
38

8
   

  
8,

53
4,

66
7

   
  

9,
57

4,
83

8
   

  
9,

59
3,

22
5

   
  

9,
90

2,
84

2
   

  
9,

97
3,

47
7

   
   

 
9,

81
3,

16
4

   
  

C
om

m
un

ity
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

1,
73

4,
48

3
   

  
1,

81
8,

09
3

   
  

2,
00

9,
57

1
   

  
2,

21
1,

60
6

   
  

2,
63

9,
22

6
   

  
3,

05
4,

21
3

   
  

2,
78

6,
81

7
   

  
2,

78
9,

35
7

   
  

2,
73

9,
39

3
   

   
 

2,
82

6,
64

7
   

  
P

ub
lic

 w
or

ks
6,

19
2,

96
2

   
  

6,
19

4,
16

7
   

  
6,

33
8,

68
4

   
  

7,
14

6,
57

4
   

  
7,

79
3,

33
0

   
  

8,
11

9,
10

2
   

  
8,

07
2,

68
9

   
  

7,
84

1,
57

6
   

  
7,

99
3,

30
8

   
   

 
8,

18
1,

92
2

   
  

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
1,

81
3,

96
7

   
  

1,
97

6,
40

0
   

  
2,

07
6,

29
5

   
  

2,
23

7,
04

8
   

  
2,

47
7,

20
3

   
  

2,
70

2,
55

5
   

  
2,

76
6,

39
7

   
  

3,
34

8,
36

5
   

  
3,

11
7,

22
7

   
   

 
3,

21
7,

56
0

   
  

C
ap

ita
l o

ut
l a

y
8,

63
9,

41
5

   
  

4,
11

5,
84

3
   

  
10

,0
20

,1
12

   
5,

95
3,

80
1

   
  

13
,4

08
,7

83
   

11
,5

37
,0

51
   

25
,6

15
,1

61
   

13
,4

14
,4

39
   

26
,9

22
,7

44
   

  
12

,6
68

,2
48

   
D

eb
t s

er
vi

ce
:

P
rin

ci
pa

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

,7
89

   
   

   
 

14
,7

03
   

   
   

 
15

,3
94

   
   

   
 

3,
96

1
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
In

te
re

st
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

83
6

   
   

   
   

1,
36

0
   

   
   

   
61

2
   

   
   

   
   

40
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
T

ot
al

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
28

,7
57

,2
36

   
24

,5
32

,0
24

   
31

,4
21

,5
12

   
29

,5
16

,3
86

   
38

,4
96

,3
82

   
38

,9
68

,8
38

   
52

,4
88

,6
86

   
41

,0
30

,4
73

   
54

,9
95

,4
12

   
  

41
,2

22
,3

06
   

E
xc

es
s 

(d
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

 o
f r

ev
en

ue
s 

ov
er

 (
un

de
r)

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
4,

41
6,

57
3

   
  

7,
47

6,
44

0
   

  
3,

54
3,

73
5

   
  

10
,6

43
,0

37
   

5,
46

8,
99

0
   

  
8,

18
1,

26
2

   
  

(9
,1

34
,8

13
)

   
 

1,
61

4,
90

2
   

  
(1

5,
33

1,
85

1)
   

29
5,

37
4

   
   

  

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
n

g
 S

o
u

rc
es

 (
U

se
s)

:
C

ap
ita

l l
ea

se
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

45
,0

11
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 in
9,

59
8,

71
7

   
  

4,
99

9,
52

3
   

  
11

,3
68

,4
46

   
6,

65
7,

31
1

   
  

13
,4

89
,8

03
   

11
,6

80
,2

28
   

25
,4

37
,4

07
   

13
,4

69
,3

46
   

27
,6

83
,8

33
   

  
12

,7
08

,7
65

   
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 o
ut

(9
,6

82
,5

50
)

   
 

(5
,0

09
,2

95
)

   
 

(1
1,

67
9,

29
4)

  
(6

,7
41

,1
27

)
   

 
(1

3,
52

0,
80

3)
  

(1
1,

68
0,

22
8)

  
(2

5,
43

7,
40

7)
  

(1
3,

60
7,

17
4)

  
(2

7,
68

3,
83

3)
   

(1
2,

70
8,

76
5)

  
T

ot
al

 o
th

er
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

(u
se

s)
(8

3,
83

3)
   

   
   

35
,2

39
   

   
   

 
(3

10
,8

48
)

   
   

 
(8

3,
81

6)
   

   
   

(3
1,

00
0)

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

37
,8

28
)

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 fu

nd
 b

al
an

ce
s

4,
33

2,
74

0
$ 

  
7,

51
1,

67
9

$ 
  

3,
23

2,
88

7
$ 

  
10

,5
59

,2
21

$ 
5,

43
7,

99
0

$ 
  

8,
18

1,
26

2
$ 

  
(9

,1
34

,8
13

)
$ 

 
1,

47
7,

07
4

$ 
  

(1
5,

33
1,

85
1)

$ 
29

5,
37

4
$ 

   
  

D
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f n

on
ca

pi
ta

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

16
%

0.
07

%
0.

06
%

0.
01

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%

2  L
ic

en
se

s 
an

d 
pe

rm
its

 r
ep

or
te

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 C
ha

rg
es

 f
or

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
in

 y
ea

rs
 p

rio
r 

to
 2

01
1

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 IN

 F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

 O
F

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 F
U

N
D

S
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
S

(M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 A
C

C
R

U
A

L
 B

A
S

IS
 O

F
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

)

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

1  F
ra

nc
hi

se
 f

ee
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 T

ax
es

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 in

 2
01

1

71



F
is

ca
l

Y
ea

r
A

ct
u

al
%

 C
h

an
g

e
A

ct
u

al
 

%
 C

h
an

g
e

A
ct

u
al

%
 C

h
an

g
e

A
ct

u
al

%
 C

h
an

g
e

A
ct

u
al

%
 C

h
an

g
e

A
ct

u
al

%
 C

h
an

g
e

20
03

8,
36

2,
85

8
$ 

   
  

 
7%

9,
49

5,
21

6
$ 

   
  

 
17

%
59

8,
41

2
$ 

  
 

10
%

34
,2

86
$ 

  
 

36
%

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

,4
90

,7
72

$ 
   

 
12

%

20
04

8,
94

9,
81

3
   

   
  

 
7%

11
,0

61
,0

21
   

   
 

16
%

81
3,

26
9

   
  

 
36

%
45

,0
73

   
  

 
31

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,8

69
,1

77
   

   
 

13
%

20
05

12
,6

63
,7

08
   

   
 

41
%

1
11

,1
24

,7
06

   
   

 
1%

76
6,

91
3

   
  

 
-6

%
41

,9
71

   
  

 
-7

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,5

97
,2

98
   

   
 

18
%

20
06

14
,9

07
,7

25
   

   
 

18
%

11
,3

60
,6

19
   

   
 

2%
74

6,
45

6
   

  
 

-3
%

47
,6

46
   

  
 

14
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

,0
62

,4
46

   
   

 
10

%

20
07

16
,3

33
,3

25
   

   
 

10
%

11
,0

18
,0

97
   

   
 

-3
%

46
9,

69
3

   
  

 
-3

7%
45

,1
90

   
  

 
-5

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
,8

66
,3

05
   

   
 

3%

20
08

17
,3

34
,9

96
   

   
 

6%
11

,2
22

,6
28

   
   

 
2%

32
7,

19
1

   
  

 
-3

0%
42

,1
64

   
  

 
-7

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
,9

26
,9

79
   

   
 

4%

20
09

17
,4

53
,8

28
   

   
 

1%
10

,2
79

,4
76

   
   

 
-8

%
27

7,
66

6
   

  
 

-1
5%

29
,3

32
   

  
 

-3
0%

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

,0
40

,3
02

   
   

 
-3

%

20
10

16
,9

17
,2

58
   

   
 

-3
%

9,
40

6,
99

4
   

   
  

 
-8

%
37

7,
64

0
   

  
 

36
%

24
,4

92
   

  
 

-1
7%

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
26

,7
26

,3
84

   
   

 
-5

%

20
11

16
,8

12
,6

73
   

   
 

-1
%

9,
67

3,
44

5
   

   
  

 
3%

35
8,

32
4

   
  

 
-5

%
29

,4
76

   
  

 
20

%
2,

27
7,

12
4

  
 

n/
a

29
,1

51
,0

42
   

   
 

9%

20
12

16
,8

20
,2

73
   

   
 

0%
11

,0
44

,4
40

   
   

 
14

%
36

5,
34

2
   

  
 

2%
32

,5
94

   
  

 
11

%
2,

32
0,

35
1

  
 

2%
30

,5
83

,0
00

   
   

 
5%

C
ha

ng
e

20
03

-2
01

2
10

1%
16

%
-3

9%
-5

%
2%

65
%

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
 T

A
X

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

 B
Y

 S
O

U
R

C
E

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S
(A

C
C

R
U

A
L

 B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
)

1
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

T
ax

 in
 L

ie
u 

of
 V

LF
 r

ep
la

ce
s 

V
eh

ic
le

 L
ic

en
se

 F
ee

s 
du

e 
to

 th
e 

pe
rm

an
en

t r
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

V
LF

 r
at

e 
in

 2
00

3.

2
 F

ra
nc

hi
se

 fe
es

 in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 T

ax
es

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
 in

 2
01

1

S
al

es
 &

 U
se

 T
ax

P
ro

p
er

ty
 T

ax
es

P
ro

p
er

ty
 T

ra
n

sf
er

 T
ax

O
cc

u
p

an
cy

 T
ax

T
o

ta
l

F
ra

n
ch

is
e 

F
ee

s 
2

72



T
ax

ab
le

A
ss

es
se

d
Y

ea
r

R
es

id
en

tia
l

C
om

m
er

ci
al

In
du

st
ria

l
O

th
er

U
ns

ec
ur

ed
V

al
ue

C
ity

LN
C

S
D

T
ot

al

20
03

7,
38

5,
95

6,
63

5
   

 
43

8,
24

4,
96

7
 

54
,1

71
,0

91
 

16
0,

46
3,

92
6

 
10

3,
34

0,
97

4
 

8,
14

2,
17

7,
59

3
   

 
0.

02
41

6%
0.

11
04

7%
0.

13
46

3%
20

04
8,

06
7,

17
9,

73
6

   
 

51
5,

91
8,

73
4

 
68

,7
79

,3
00

 
12

,3
65

,2
95

   
10

8,
58

0,
52

2
 

8,
77

2,
82

3,
58

7
   

 
0.

02
41

6%
0.

11
04

7%
0.

13
46

3%
20

05
8,

60
6,

52
9,

64
6

   
 

45
1,

72
3,

66
2

 
72

,0
55

,2
36

 
24

7,
56

1,
97

4
 

11
7,

72
6,

81
8

 
9,

49
5,

59
7,

33
6

   
 

0.
02

41
6%

0.
11

04
7%

0.
13

46
3%

20
06

9,
34

1,
90

8,
47

0
   

 
47

0,
80

4,
84

6
 

79
,0

77
,8

31
 

34
6,

75
7,

96
5

 
11

6,
23

4,
68

7
 

10
,3

54
,7

83
,7

99
  

0.
13

46
3%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
13

46
3%

20
07

10
,1

71
,1

26
,4

27
  

51
0,

22
6,

82
9

 
83

,7
04

,1
21

 
44

3,
13

6,
97

8
 

13
8,

29
7,

88
4

 
11

,3
46

,4
92

,2
39

  
0.

13
46

3%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

13
46

3%
20

08
10

,7
78

,5
43

,2
63

  
54

3,
56

6,
38

8
 

85
,8

64
,3

84
 

53
8,

34
7,

36
3

 
12

9,
48

4,
62

1
 

12
,0

75
,8

06
,0

19
  

0.
13

46
3%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
13

46
3%

20
09

10
,8

43
,7

96
,5

70
  

55
3,

93
2,

05
7

 
87

,3
66

,6
73

 
59

7,
37

3,
48

1
 

14
3,

33
5,

95
2

 
12

,2
25

,8
04

,7
33

  
0.

13
46

3%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

13
46

3%
20

10
10

,5
18

,4
98

,3
08

  
65

1,
65

0,
71

1
 

89
,2

40
,3

68
 

47
3,

98
1,

67
1

 
14

6,
26

6,
10

9
 

11
,8

79
,6

37
,1

67
  

0.
13

46
3%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
13

46
3%

20
11

11
,0

14
,1

07
,3

92
  

63
8,

04
8,

66
4

 
93

,1
14

,5
60

 
11

,4
82

,3
30

   
13

5,
82

7,
92

6
 

11
,8

92
,5

80
,8

72
  

0.
13

46
3%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
13

46
3%

20
12

11
,1

17
,7

32
,1

20
  

63
8,

40
0,

30
0

 
94

,0
93

,0
29

 
11

,0
04

,3
69

   
13

0,
69

4,
43

3
 

11
,9

91
,9

24
,2

51
  

0.
13

46
3%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
13

46
3%

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

A
S

S
E

S
S

E
D

 V
A

L
U

E
 O

F
 T

A
X

A
B

L
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S

N
o

te
s:

E
xe

m
pt

 v
al

ue
s 

ar
e 

no
t i

nc
lu

de
d 

in
 to

ta
ls

.

In
 1

97
8 

th
e 

vo
te

rs
 o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 p

as
se

d 
P

ro
po

si
tio

n 
13

 w
hi

ch
 li

m
ite

d 
ta

xe
s 

to
 a

 to
ta

l m
ax

im
um

 r
at

e 
of

 1
%

, b
as

ed
 u

p
on

 th
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 
pr

op
er

ty
 b

ei
ng

 ta
xe

d.
  E

ac
h 

ye
ar

, t
he

 a
ss

es
se

d 
va

lu
e 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

m
ay

 b
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
by

 a
n 

"i
nf

la
tio

n 
fa

ct
or

" 
(li

m
ite

d 
to

 a
 m

ax
im

u
m

 o
f 2

%
).

  W
ith

 fe
w

 
ex

ce
pt

io
ns

, p
ro

pe
rt

y 
is

 o
nl

y 
re

as
se

ss
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 n

ew
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 o

r 
at

 th
e 

tim
e 

it 
is

 s
ol

d 
to

 a
 n

ew
 o

w
ne

r.
  A

t t
ha

t p
oi

nt
, t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 

re
as

se
ss

ed
 b

as
ed

 u
po

n 
th

e 
ad

de
d 

va
lu

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

or
 a

t t
he

 p
ur

ch
as

e 
pr

ic
e 

(m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

) 
or

 e
co

no
m

ic
 v

al
ue

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 s
ol

d.
  T

he
 a

ss
es

se
d 

va
lu

at
io

n 
da

ta
 s

ho
w

n 
ab

ov
e 

re
pr

es
en

ts
 th

e 
on

ly
 d

at
a 

cu
rr

en
tly

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
w

ith
 r

es
pe

ct
 to

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

f t
ax

ab
le

 p
ro

p
er

ty
 a

nd
 is

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
lim

ita
tio

ns
 d

es
cr

ib
ed

 a
bo

ve
.

T
he

 L
ag

un
a 

N
ig

ue
l C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
D

is
tr

ic
t (

C
S

D
) 

w
as

 d
is

so
lv

ed
 in

 M
ay

 2
00

5.
  T

he
 d

ire
ct

 ta
x 

ra
te

 o
f t

he
 C

S
D

 w
as

 a
ss

um
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ity

 in
 2

00
5.

S
ou

rc
e:

  O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
ss

es
so

r 
20

02
/0

3 
- 

20
11

/1
2 

co
m

bi
ne

d 
ta

x 
ro

lls
, t

hr
ou

gh
 H

dL
, C

or
en

 &
 C

on
e.

D
ire

ct
 T

ax
 R

at
e

T
ot

al

73



C
ity

T
ot

al
S

ha
re

 o
f

C
ou

nt
y

C
ap

is
tr

an
o

La
gu

na
La

gu
na

 B
ea

ch
M

ou
lto

n
S

ad
dl

eb
ac

k
S

ou
th

D
ire

ct
 a

nd
D

ire
ct

D
ire

ct
C

ap
is

tr
an

o
V

al
le

y
B

ea
ch

U
ni

fe
d 

20
10

N
ig

ue
l

V
al

le
y

C
oa

st
M

et
ro

O
ve

rla
pp

in
g

Y
ea

r
R

at
e

R
at

e
U

ni
fie

d
W

at
er

U
ni

fie
d

G
O

 R
ef

un
di

ng
W

at
er

 D
is

t
U

ni
fie

d
W

at
er

W
at

er
R

at
es

20
03

0.
13

46
3%

1.
00

%
0.

01
05

4%
0.

00
12

9%
0.

02
89

7%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

18
38

3%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

01
65

7%
0.

01
34

0%
1.

25
46

0%
20

04
0.

13
46

3%
1.

00
%

0.
01

29
2%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
02

59
4%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
20

37
7%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
01

23
9%

0.
01

22
0%

1.
26

72
2%

20
05

0.
13

46
3%

1.
00

%
0.

01
19

1%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

02
02

0%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

18
21

4%
0.

03
62

6%
0.

01
07

5%
0.

01
16

0%
1.

27
28

6%
20

06
0.

13
46

3%
1.

00
%

0.
01

07
8%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
01

89
7%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
10

12
2%

0.
03

07
9%

0.
00

98
0%

0.
01

04
0%

1.
18

19
6%

20
07

0.
13

46
3%

1.
00

%
0.

00
94

7%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

01
72

0%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

09
85

5%
0.

03
69

4%
0.

00
90

4%
0.

00
94

0%
1.

18
06

0%
20

08
0.

13
46

3%
1.

00
%

0.
01

01
9%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
01

80
8%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
07

81
0%

0.
02

66
8%

0.
00

96
3%

0.
00

90
0%

1.
15

16
8%

20
09

0.
13

46
3%

1.
00

%
0.

00
97

1%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

01
54

4%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

10
46

9%
0.

02
83

4%
0.

00
92

5%
0.

00
43

0%
1.

17
17

3%
20

10
0.

13
46

3%
1.

00
%

0.
01

07
7%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
01

68
3%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
14

83
2%

0.
03

04
3%

0.
00

91
9%

0.
00

43
0%

1.
21

98
4%

20
11

0.
13

46
3%

1.
00

%
0.

01
10

5%
0.

00
00

0%
0.

00
57

0%
0.

01
01

2%
0.

12
80

2%
0.

03
19

4%
0.

00
91

0%
0.

00
37

0%
1.

19
96

3%
20

12
0.

13
46

3%
1.

00
%

0.
01

10
1%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
01

60
1%

0.
00

00
0%

0.
11

95
7%

0.
03

16
3%

0.
00

82
8%

0.
00

37
0%

1.
19

02
0%

In
 1

97
8,

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 v

ot
er

s 
pa

ss
ed

 P
ro

po
si

tio
n 

13
 w

hi
ch

 s
et

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 ta
x 

ra
te

 a
t a

 1
.0

0%
 fi

xe
d 

am
ou

nt
.  

T
hi

s 
1.

00
%

 is
 s

ha
re

d
 b

y 
al

l t
ax

in
g 

ag
en

ci
es

 fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
su

bj
ec

t p
ro

pe
rt

y 
re

si
de

s 
w

ith
in

.  
In

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 th

e 
1.

00
%

 fi
xe

d 
am

ou
nt

, p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
rs

 a
re

 c
ha

rg
ed

 ta
xe

s 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
ss

es
se

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 v

al
ue

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
pa

ym
en

t o
f a

ny
 v

ot
er

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
bo

nd
s.

O
ve

rla
pp

in
g 

R
at

es

O
ve

rla
pp

in
g 

ra
te

s 
ar

e 
th

os
e 

th
at

 a
pp

ly
 to

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
rs

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

ity
.  

N
ot

 a
ll 

ov
er

la
pp

in
g 

ra
te

s 
ap

pl
y 

to
 a

ll 
ci

ty
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

rs
.

S
ou

rc
e:

  O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
ss

es
so

r 
20

02
/0

3 
- 

20
11

/1
2 

T
ax

 R
at

e 
T

ab
le

s,
 th

ro
ug

h 
H

dL
, C

or
en

 &
 C

on
e

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

D
IR

E
C

T
 A

N
D

 O
V

E
R

L
A

P
P

IN
G

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 T
A

X
 R

A
T

E
S

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S

N
o

te
s:

T
ot

al
 d

ire
ct

 r
at

e 
is

 th
e 

w
ei

gh
te

d 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 a
ll 

in
di

vi
du

al
 d

ire
ct

 r
at

es
 a

pp
lie

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ity

.

74



T
ax

p
ay

er
A

ss
es

se
d

V
al

u
e

E
st

im
at

ed
R

ev
en

u
e

R
an

k

%
 o

f
T

o
ta

l C
it

y
T

ax
ab

le
A

ss
es

se
d

V
al

u
e

A
ss

es
se

d
V

al
u

e
E

st
im

at
ed

R
ev

en
u

e
R

an
k

%
 o

f
T

o
ta

l C
it

y
T

ax
ab

le
A

ss
es

se
d

V
al

u
e

B
R

E
 P

ro
pe

rt
ie

s,
 In

c.
71

,9
19

,7
85

$ 
   

96
,8

26
$ 

   
1

0.
60

%
62

,3
00

,0
00

$ 
   

83
,8

74
$ 

   
1

0.
81

%
S

eq
uo

ia
 E

qu
iti

es
-H

id
de

n 
H

ill
s

51
,3

05
,2

77
   

   
69

,0
72

   
   

2
0.

43
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

S
ha

pe
ll 

In
du

st
rie

s,
 In

c.
47

,1
88

,6
02

   
   

63
,5

30
   

   
3

0.
39

%
58

,2
49

,7
42

   
   

78
,4

22
   

   
2

0.
76

%
S

ea
si

de
 M

ea
do

w
s 

P
ar

tn
er

s
43

,8
15

,6
96

   
   

58
,9

89
   

   
4

0.
37

%
37

,9
64

,2
12

   
   

51
,1

11
   

   
4

0.
50

%
C

os
tc

o 
W

ho
le

sa
le

 C
or

po
ra

tio
n

43
,1

50
,9

17
   

   
58

,0
94

   
   

5
0.

36
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

F
G

 L
ag

un
a 

N
ig

ue
l S

en
io

r 
A

pt
. L

P
36

,9
82

,8
86

   
   

49
,7

90
   

   
6

0.
31

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
E

Q
R

 B
on

d 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
36

,6
68

,6
25

   
   

49
,3

67
   

   
7

0.
31

%
31

,6
41

,4
50

   
   

42
,5

99
   

   
7

0.
41

%
O

ce
an

 R
an

ch
 II

35
,7

88
,6

35
   

   
48

,1
82

   
   

8
0.

30
%

25
,9

07
,2

98
   

   
34

,8
79

   
   

10
0.

34
%

P
oi

nt
e 

N
ig

ue
l P

ar
tn

er
s 

LP
34

,4
62

,8
61

   
   

46
,3

97
   

   
9

0.
29

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
M

an
n 

E
nt

er
pr

is
es

 In
c.

32
,5

82
,1

64
   

   
43

,8
65

   
   

10
0.

27
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

S
to

ne
br

id
ge

 In
ve

st
or

s 
Li

m
ite

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
44

,3
69

,9
99

   
   

59
,7

35
   

   
3

0.
58

%
S

to
ne

rid
ge

 In
ve

st
or

s 
Li

m
ite

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
37

,7
40

,0
00

   
   

50
,8

09
   

   
5

0.
49

%
La

gu
na

 N
ig

ue
l I

nv
es

to
rs

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

32
,9

93
,4

73
   

   
44

,4
19

   
   

6
0.

43
%

A
rd

en
 R

ea
lit

y 
Li

m
ite

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
30

,5
84

,5
26

   
   

41
,1

76
   

   
8

0.
40

%
V

oi
t L

a 
P

az
 P

ar
tn

er
 L

LC
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
28

,5
89

,4
76

   
   

38
,4

90
   

   
9

0.
37

%

T
ot

al
43

3,
86

5,
44

8
$ 

 
58

4,
11

3
$ 

 
3.

62
%

39
0,

34
0,

17
6

$ 
 

52
5,

51
5

$ 
 

5.
10

%

20
12

20
03

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 T

A
X

 P
A

Y
E

R
S

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 Y

E
A

R
 A

N
D

 N
IN

E
 Y

E
A

R
S

 A
G

O

S
ou

rc
e:

  O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
ss

es
so

r 
20

11
/1

2 
an

d 
20

02
/2

00
3 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
T

ax
 R

ol
ls

 th
ro

ug
h 

H
dL

, C
or

en
 &

 C
on

e.

75



F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r

E
n

d
ed

Ju
n

e 
30

T
ax

es
 L

ev
ie

d
fo

r 
th

e
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r
A

m
o

u
n

t
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

o
f 

L
ev

y
C

u
rr

en
t 

Y
ea

r
U

n
p

ai
d

C
o

lle
ct

io
n

s
fo

r 
P

re
vi

o
u

s
Y

ea
r 

L
ev

ie
s

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
U

n
p

ai
d

20
03

8,
38

2,
02

3
$ 

   
   

   
8,

29
0,

51
1

$ 
   

   
   

98
.9

1%
91

,5
12

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

12
6,

77
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
73

,5
03

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

20
04

8,
97

3,
18

6
   

   
   

   
8,

91
7,

08
2

   
   

   
   

99
.3

7%
56

,1
04

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
2,

09
2

   
   

   
   

   
7,

51
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

05
9,

31
1,

69
4

   
   

   
   

9,
13

6,
30

1
   

   
   

   
98

.1
2%

17
5,

39
3

   
   

   
   

   
10

4,
50

8
   

   
   

   
   

78
,4

00
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

06
10

,1
64

,1
94

   
   

   
 

9,
91

9,
79

6
   

   
   

   
97

.6
0%

24
4,

39
8

   
   

   
   

   
12

3,
72

0
   

   
   

   
   

19
9,

07
8

   
   

   
   

   
20

07
16

,3
42

,2
00

   
   

   
 

15
,9

20
,6

38
   

   
   

 
97

.4
2%

42
1,

56
2

   
   

   
   

   
17

5,
57

3
   

   
   

   
   

44
5,

06
7

   
   

   
   

   
20

08
17

,5
63

,1
97

   
   

   
 

16
,9

87
,5

30
   

   
   

 
96

.7
2%

57
5,

66
7

   
   

   
   

   
28

9,
46

7
   

   
   

   
   

73
1,

26
7

   
   

   
   

   
20

09
17

,4
54

,9
87

   
   

   
 

16
,8

96
,2

17
   

   
   

 
96

.8
0%

55
8,

77
0

   
   

   
   

   
46

0,
88

6
   

   
   

   
   

82
9,

15
1

   
   

   
   

   
20

10
16

,7
80

,2
90

   
   

   
 

14
,7

51
,9

43
   

   
   

 
87

.9
1%

2,
02

8,
34

7
   

   
   

   
45

1,
78

2
   

   
   

   
   

2,
40

5,
71

6
   

   
   

   
20

11
16

,8
16

,2
32

   
   

   
 

16
,4

48
,1

30
   

   
   

 
97

.8
1%

36
8,

10
2

   
   

   
   

   
28

8,
57

1
   

   
   

   
   

2,
48

5,
24

7
   

   
   

   
20

12
16

,8
92

,6
44

   
   

   
 

16
,5

20
,6

01
   

   
   

 
97

.8
0%

37
2,

04
4

   
   

   
   

   
20

5,
00

1
   

   
   

   
   

2,
65

2,
29

0
   

   
   

   

T
ax

 le
dg

er
s 

do
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
ta

x 
ye

ar
 fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 d
el

in
qu

en
t t

ax
es

 a
re

 p
ai

d,
 th

er
ef

or
e,

 th
is

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
re

fle
ct

s 
th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
un

pa
id

 b
al

an
ce

 fr
om

 d
el

in
qu

en
t t

ax
es

.

S
ou

rc
e:

  O
ra

ng
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
ud

ito
r 

C
on

tr
ol

le
r 

T
ax

 L
ed

ge
rs

N
o

te
s:

C
o

lle
ct

ed
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

o
f 

th
e 

L
ev

y

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 L

A
G

U
N

A
 N

IG
U

E
L

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 T
A

X
 L

E
V

IE
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

S
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
S

76



Fiscal
Year

Capital
Leases

Percentage
of Assessed

Property Value a
Per

Capita b

2003 20,836                 0.03846% 0.32  
2004 34,058                 0.04952% 0.52  
2005 19,355                 0.02686% 0.29  
2006 3,961                   0.00501% 0.06  
2007 -                       0.00000% -    
2008 -                       0.00000% -    
2009 -                       0.00000% -    
2010 -                       0.00000% -    
2011 -                       0.00000% -    
2012 -                       0.00000% -    

The City does not have any Business-Type  activites.  All debt is reported as governmental activity.

a See schedule on page 75 for assessed property value data.  This ratio is calculated using
  assessed property value for the prior calendar year.

b See schedule on page 80 for population data.  This ratio is calculated using population as of
  January of each fiscal year as reported by the State Department of Finance.

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
GOVERMENTAL ACTIVITIES
LAST TEN FISCALYEARS

Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

Notes:
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DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT:
Total Debt 

6/30/12

% 
Applicable(

1)
City's Share of 
Debt 6/30/12

Metropolitan Water District 196,545,000$    0.665% 1,307,024$      
Capistrano Unified School District School Facilities Improvement District No. 1 45,509,930        27.835% 12,667,689      
Laguna Beach Unified School District 30,480,000        0.006% 1,829              
Saddleback Valley Unified School District 131,925,000      0.072% 94,986            
Moulton-Niguel Water District, Improvement District No. 7 10,125,000        87.651% 8,874,664        
Moulton-Niguel Water District, Improvement District No. 8 80,000               5.041% 4,033              
South Coast Water District 2,965,000          6.824% 202,332           
City of Laguna Niguel -                     100.000% -                  

TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT 23,152,557$    

OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT:

Orange County General Fund Obligations 233,751,000$    3.183% 7,440,294$      
Orange County Pension Obligations 214,405,353      3.183% 6,824,522        
Orange County Board of Education Certificates of Participation 16,000,000        3.183% 509,280           
Capistrano Unified School District Certificates of Participation 22,005,000        18.743% 4,124,397        
Moulton-Niguel Water District Certificates of Participation 85,215,000        45.282% 38,587,056      
Municipal Water District of Orange County Water Facilities Corporation 12,145,000        3.763% 457,016           
Orange County Fire Authority General Fund Obligations -                     -                  

TOTAL GROSS OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT 57,942,565$    
Less:  MWDOC Water Facilities Corporation (100% self-supporting) 457,016           

TOTAL NET OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT 57,485,549$    

GROSS COMBINED TOTAL DEBT (2) 81,095,122$    
NET COMBINED TOTAL DEBT 80,638,106$    

Direct Debt ..................................................................................................... 0.00%
Total Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt ............................... 0.00%
Gross Combined Total Debt ........................................................................ 0.68%
Net Combined Total Debt ............................................................................ 0.67%

State School Building Aid Repayable as of 6/30/12: -$                   

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
JUNE 30, 2012

Source:  MuniServices, LLC

(1)  Percentage of overlapping agency's assessed valuation located within boundaries of the City.

(2)  Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and tax allocation bonds and non-
      bonded capital lease obligations.

Ratios to 2011-2012 Assessed Valuation:

2011-2012 Assessed Valuation:  $11,991,924,251
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Fiscal
Year Population

Personal Income
(in thousands) d

Per Capita
Income d

Taxable Sales
Per Capita a

Registered
Voters c

Housing
Units

Median Home
Value b

Unemployment
Rate e

2003 65,089       2,697,409$           41,442$     14,567$             37,363       24,553   414,000$         3.70%

2004 65,620       2,881,151             43,907       16,810               38,201       24,664   506,000           3.30%

2005 65,800       3,045,454             46,283       16,509               40,387       24,723   640,000           2.90%

2006 65,959       3,285,765             49,815       16,779               40,684       24,793   682,500           2.60%

2007 66,058       3,445,747             52,162       16,730               40,454       24,831   787,500           3.00%

2008 66,522       3,506,042             52,705       16,597               41,472       24,908   556,000           4.10%

2009 67,117       3,423,303             51,005       15,821               42,351       24,982   510,000           7.00%

2010 67,666       3,235,788             47,820       13,531               42,102       25,035   495,000           7.50%

2011 63,228       3,880,866             55,196       16,036               42,996       25,363   515,000           7.20%

2012 63,691       3,172,067             49,804       16,652               41,913       25,374   490,500           6.80%

Source:

O.C. Registrar of Voters
CLR Search
Cassidy Turley

Notes

State Department of Finance
HdL, Coren & Cone
U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics
Center for Demographic Research
Orange County Assessor

d, e Data for year 2012 were obtained from Hdl, Coren & Cone.

a Taxable sales is based upon sales tax revenue reported by the City on the modified accrual basis of accounting.

b Median home value includes both single family and condo/townhouse units.

Years 2002-2007 were calculated from informatin from the OC Assessors office.

Data for years 2008-2010 were obtained from Hdl.

Data for year 2012 were obtained from CLR Search.

c Data for year 2012 were obtained from OC Registrar of Voters.

CITY OF LAGUNA NIGUEL

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
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